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ARTISAN
DELIVERED
RESULTS IN

FISCAL 2002

potential to create an abundance of new IC product and applications opportunities—
if companies can take advantage of them by turning ideas into designs into ICs.
Because we deliver a powerful and cost-effective platform for accelerating that

process, we believe our future is bright.

In spite of the tough market conditions, Artisan made great progress during fiscal
2002. Total revenues increased by 45% compared to fiscal 2001. Our royalty revenues
more than doubled, up 106%, we strengthened our already debt-free balance sheet

by $9.4 million and realized a profit of $3.5 million.

Driving all of these metrics was our ability to expand our user base by delivering
critical enabling technologies and valuable relationships. We added six semiconductor
manufacturing partners during the vear allowing us to offer our users a choice of over
a dozen manufacturers, each with a unique technology offering and value proposition.
Our broad market acceptance and the results we've posted for fiscal 2002 are the
best validation of our products’ value and quality. Our users have a choice of design

solutions and serious IC designers have chosen Artisan.

Great results come from great people. Our fiscal 2002 results are a powerful testament
to the increasing strength of our product development, sales, distribution and support
channels and to the monumental efforts of every one of our very dedicated emplovees.
[t was about a vear ago that our people decided that they were not interested in
participating in the industry’s downturn. I think you would all agree that they met
that goal. So I want to use this opportunity to thank all members of the Artisan
workforce for their determination and drive; they've earned my complete respect

and warmest gratitude.

Artisan has performed well in trying times. Our value proposition, our products and
our business model have passed the toughest possible test. And we are well posi-
tioned to benefit from the anticipated semiconductor recovery. We believe that we
are responding well to the changes that are happening in our industry and find

ourselves in a strong position, surrounded by opportunity, as we head into 2003.

In closing, I salute our users and partners. We are excited and truly proud of the role
we’'re playing in your quest for silicon success and are deeply committed to helping
vou achieve your objectives in the vears to come. I thank our stockholders for your
confidence and support during what was a trving vear for investors and businesses
alike. And I know I speak for evervone at Artisan when [ sav that we take our stock-
holders’ interests very seriously and that we are dedicated to delivering value to you

in the vears ahead.

MARK R. TEMPLETON President and Chief Executive Officer
January 27, 2003




DEAR ARTISAN
STOCKHOLDERS

A MARKET
PERSPECTIVE

SEVERAL WEEKS AGO, my nine-vear-old son asked me what work was like.

My quick answer was that it's exciting, in fact more exciting than ever. At the
time, it was hard for me to describe to him all the reasons why. But after a lictdle
more thought, two rcasons were clear. The first is that design teams at over 1,000
semiconductor companics arc benefiting from our products and it’s thrilling to see
such a strong validation of our value proposition. The second is that Artisan is a
very unique company; our combination of products, partnerships and business
model make us unlike any other company in the semiconductor industry. We

pioncered a whole new wav of doing business in our market, and it’s working.

We deliver tremendous value to our users by providing them with a design platform
that links them to their choice of many of the world’s leading semiconductor
manufacturers. We deliver value to those manufacturers by providing them with a
channel to the thousands of design teams that rely on our products. Finally, we
deliver value to our partners by including their technologics in our product diseribu-
tions and promotions. That value—coupled with an environment of increasing
silicon complexity—has translated into the profitable growth that has enabled us

to deliver value to our stockholders.

Artisan pioneered a unique and differentiating business model. Instcad of selling
our products to design teams, we form partnerships with leading semiconductor
manufacturers. Those partnerships allow us to provide our products to designers
under a no-cost license. As the resulting Artisan-based designs transfer to produc-
tion, manufacturers pay us a volume-based fee or royalty. 1C design teams benefit
by having immediate, low-cost access to their manufacturer of choice. And manu-
facturers benefit by having a strong channel to the thousands of design teams that
have come to trust Artisan’s design solutions. This unique business model enables
very efficient product distribution strategies and provides Artisan with muluple
revenue streams: licensing revenue from semiconductor manufacturers, support
and training revenuc from our users, and rovalty revenue from the production of

Artisan-based ICs.

Artisan has become a nexus for more than 150 design services providers, EDA
companies and IP partners. We deliver connections between these partners that help
our users to streamline their design process and realize their goals. We often feel like
a busv transportation hub, enabling thousands of design teams to connect with the

wide variety of solutions required to achicve leadership in their respective markets.

Our position as a hub in this important market gives us a unique (and uniquely

valuable) perspective on the state of the semiconductor industry—which has endured
a painful and protracted downturn. Unlike some technology industrics, however, the
downturn isn’t entircly driven by overcapacity or lack of demand. The semiconductor

business is also in the midst of a fundamental, technology-fueled transformation.

Process technologics continue to improve—so fast, in fact, that there’s more silicon
real estate available than most designers can utilize in a timely and cost-effective
manner. And semiconductor production capacity continues to increase in countries

like Taiwan, Korea, Malaysia and China. The economics of this situation have the
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That evolution continues, driven to a large extent by semiconductor manufacturing advances that enable new

levels of density and performance. The number of transistors on a typical integrated circuit has gone from tens
of thousands in the 1980s to tens of millions today—and over the next few years, we will see designs utilizing
well over a billion transistors. The potential of today’s ICs is enormous. But realizing this potential means

overcoming enormous chalienges for IC designers.

That's where Artisan Components comes in. We deliver a platform that encompasses high-quality IC “building
blocks,” comprehensive support and training, and connects to our partners’ wide range of IC solutions. This
unified design environment ensures compatibility and accelerates the development and production of complex
ICs. Acceptance of the Artisan platform by many of the world’s IC designers has enabled us to deliver on our

fundamental corporate mission: creating value for our stockholders.

We deliver solutions that are optimized for our users’ choice of manufacturing partners, design environments
and performance targets. Every user is different and it is our goa! to enable each user to have the choices
necessary to meet their business objectives. We provide choice through our philosophy of openness and by work-
ing in partnership with manufacturing, electronic design automation (EDA), intellectual property (I1P) and design
services companies that are involved in our customer’s design and manufacturing solutions. By providing free-
dom of choice, we enable our customers to design better products and get them into production—and to

market—taster and ultimately, at a lower cost.

The challenge for every public company—the overriding mission—is to defiver value to its stockholders through
profitable growth. Artisan is meeting this challenge by bringing real benefits to IC designers around the world.
Today, mare than 1,000 companies are using the Artisan platform to create complex ICs for virtually every
technology market. This broad-based acceptance has translated into growth in Artisan’s revenue and profits

in fiscal 2002. As the complexity of semiconductor design continues to increase, we believe Artisan is weli

positioned to continue to meet the needs of our users and as a result, deliver value to our stockholders.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the information incorporated by reference herein contain
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. When used in this Report, the words
“expects,” “anticipates” and “estimates” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those we expect or anticipate. These risks and uncertainties include those discussed
below and those discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Factors Affecting Future Operating Results.” We undertake no obligation to publicly update or
correct these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date this Report is
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

We are a leading developer of high performance, high density and low power embedded memory, standard cell
and input/output intellectual property, or IP, components for the design and manufacture of complex integrated
circuits or semiconductors. We license our products to customers for the design of integrated circuits used in
complex, high volume applications, such as portable computing devices, cellular phones, consumer multimedia
products, automotive electronics, personal computers, workstations and servers.

Our customers include foundries, which only manufacture integrated circuits, integrated device manufacturers,
which design and manufacture integrated circuits, and companies that design integrated circuits for manufacture
by third parties. Integrated circuit manufacturers invest significant resources in libraries that are designed to
match their specific manufacturing processes. Our IP library products are designed to enable these manufacturers
to achieve the best combination of performance, density, power and yield for a given manufacturing process. We
provide a layer of reliable I[P components that help ensure integrated circuits will work to specification before
they are manufactured. This process interface layer is important since every integrated circuit design must be
mapped into a specific manufacturing process to achieve targeted performance and yield. As a result, we believe
integrated circuit designers view optimized IP components as an important link between the design of an
integrated circuit and the manufacturing process. Typically, an integrated circuit manufacturer licenses one or
more products designed for its manufacturing process that is accompanied by layout databases, views to support
a customer’s design tool environment and design methodology documentation.

We license our products on a nonexclusive, worldwide basis to major integrated circuit manufacturers and grant
these manufacturers the right to distribute our products to their internal design teams and to their integrated
circuit design customers. We charge manufacturers a license fee that gives them the right to manufacture
integrated circuits containing products we have developed for their manufacturing process. In addition,
manufacturers agree to pay us royalties based on manufacturing volumes of integrated circuits that include our
products. A portion of such royalty payments is then credited back to the manufacturer’s account to be applied
against future license fees, if any, payable by such manufacturer.

For most of our integrated circuit manufacturing customers, we perform all or part of the distribution and
licensing of our products to the integrated circuit design companies that use such manufacturers to produce their
designs. In performing this distribution and licensing function, we have licensed our products to over 1,000
design companies. When distributing our products to integrated circuit design companies, we make the core set
of our product libraries available to our licensed companies at no charge. We also provide customized IP
component products and services to our licensed customers on a separate fee basis.

We have several industry partner programs whereby our partners provide a wide variety of IP solutions, design
services and tool support to streamline the design process for users of our IP components. Through these
programs, we provide products and support to over 150 companies who use these products in support of our
licensed users.




We believe that the licensing of our IP components to integrated circuit manufacturers and the design companies
that use them encourages proliferation of our products and provides a highly efficient distribution channel for
our IP components. We have licensed our products to many leading semiconductor manufacturers including
Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd., Dongbu Electronics Co. Ltd., Fujitsu Ltd., 1st Silicon (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd., Infineon Technologies AG, Intemati?nal Business Machines Corporation, Newport Fab, LLC (doing
business as Jazz Semiconductor), National Semiconductor Corporation, NEC Corporation Ltd., Sanyo Electric
Co. Ltd., Sharp Corporation, Siemens AG, Silténa Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing

Company Ltd. and United Microelectronics Corporation.

We incorporated in California in April 1991 as VLSI Libraries Incorporated, changed our name to Artisan
Components, Inc. in March 1997 and reincorporated in Delaware in January 1998. On January 4, 2001, we
acquired certain assets of the physical library business of Synopsys, Inc. for approximately $27.4 million in cash,
stock and assumed obligations. Our principal executive offices are located at 141 Caspian Court, Sunnyvale,
California 94089-1013, our telephone number! is (408) 734-5600 and our website is www.artisan.com. Our
trademarks include Artisan, Process-Perfect, SAGE and the Artisan logo. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also
includes our and other organizations’ product names, trade names and trademarks.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

The development of the market for memory, standard cell and input/output components used in complex single
chip integrated circuits has resulted from the continuing horizontal specialization in the semiconductor industry.
This trend has been driven by a growth in design complexity due to increases in manufacturing capacity and an
increasing focus on core competencies. In the 1970s, semiconductor companies were vertically integrated and
responsible for all aspects of integrated circuit production, including integrated circuit design, electronic design
automation tool design, IP component design and integrated circuit manufacturing. In the 1980s, application
specific integrated circuit companies developed a new approach that allowed their customers to perform the logic
design of an integrated circuit while they performed the detailed physical implementation of the design and
manufactured the integrated circuit. In addition, stand-alone electronic design automation tool vendors began
providing software design tools to complement those developed by internal divisions of semiconductor
companies. The early 1990s saw the emergence of a number of semiconductor design companies that chose to
focus on specific design expertise, take advantage of the availability of excess semiconductor manufacturing
capacity and avoid the capital expenditures necessary to build fabrication facilities. Throughout this period,
semiconductor manufacturers continued to fo:cus on their core competencies: semiconductor design and
manufacturing processes. Due to the greatly increased complexity of single chip integrated circuits,
semiconductor manufacturers began to outsource the design of particular IP components critical to the successful
development of such integrated circuits.

Since the 1970s, advances in semiconductor manufacturing processes have enabled the transistor density on
integrated circuits to double approximately evety 18 months. Today, it is possible to place tens of millions of
transistors on a single integrated circuit. State of the art fabrication facilities of the 1980s produced integrated
circuits using process geometries of 1.0 um (one millionth of a meter). Current state-of-the-art fabrication
facilities use 0.13 pm process geometries, and many semiconductor manufacturers have begun the transition to
facilities using 90 nanometer (0.09 um) processes. These advances enable the manufacture of highly complex
integrated circuits, resulting in substantial performance, power, cost and reliability improvements over
conventional multi-chip systems on printed$ circuit boards. These integrated circuits are known as
system-on-a-chip integrated circuits and combine all of the functionality of printed circuit boards onto a single
integrated circuit and are optimal for use in complex, high volume applications such as portable computing
devices, cellular phones, consumer multimedia products, automotive electronics, personal computers and
workstations.
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As shown above, in both a printed circuit board system and in a system-on-a-chip, the primary building blocks
may include memory, standard cell, input/output, microprocessor, digital signal processor, mixed-signal and
analog components. However, integration of these components into system-on-a-chip integrated circuits at
process geometries of 0.25 pm or below is far more complex and time consuming than the design of a traditional
printed circuit board system. Given shorter product life cycles and the importance of reducing time to market, we
believe the use of our IP components to leverage design and manufacturing capabilities can be a significant
competitive advantage to semiconductor manufacturers.

Semiconductor manufacturers require solutions that fully utilize their manufacturing processes in order to
maximize performance, speed and density of the finished integrated circuit while reducing time to market.
Although the electronic design automation tool industry has successfully developed partial solutions to increase
design productivity and performance, electronic design automation tools have not completely overcome the
challenges of creating IP components tailored to a particular manufacturing process within a compressed
time-to-market window. Suppliers of portable generic IP libraries have also improved design productivity by
offering products designed to work with many manufacturing processes. However, these generic libraries do not
fully utilize the depth and strengths of a particular manufacturing process. Semiconductor manufacturers have
also increased their internal design resources to produce IP components for themselves and for their customers.
In addition, many of these same semiconductor manufacturers use third party IP components, such as ours, in
order to harness the strengths of their manufacturing processes, increase the performance of their manufactured
products, accelerate time to market for themselves and their customers and gain access to integrated circuit
design companies that utilize IP components produced by third parties such as Artisan.

MARKET APPROACH

Our objective is to be the leading provider of high performance IP components to the semiconductor industry.
Our strategy is based upon the following key elements:

Focus on Key Components for High Voelume Systemi-on-a-Chip Integrated Circuits. We target the
system-on-a-chip integrated circuit industry with highly specialized memory, standard cell and
input/output components. Together, these components constitute a substantial majority of the silicon area
on a typical system-on-a-chip integrated circuit and have a substantial impact on the overall performance
of the integrated circuit. By offering improved performance in these critical areas of high volume
integrated circuits, we seek to expand the utilization of our products in the design and manufacture of
integrated circuits.

Strengthen Relationships with Leading Semiconductor Manufacturers. We focus on licensing our
products to the world’s leading semiconductor manufacturers. We believe these manufacturers represent
the largest revenue potential for us because they utilize the most advanced manufacturing processes,
manufacture the largest number of integrated circuits, have the most pressing need for high performance
IP components and face the greatest time-to-market pressures.

Increase Revenue through Diversified Business Model. We generate revenue through a combination of
license fees and royalties. We believe our license agreements with manufacturers and sublicenses to
designers facilitate the broad and rapid penetration of our products into multiple designs, thereby
increasing potential royalty revenue. We seek to increase our total revenue by developing products for a
broader range of integrated circuit manufacturers, expanding the scope of products we develop for such




manufacturers, increasing the number of users of our products, expanding the services we provide to
integrated circuit designers and manufacturers and improving our procedures for tracking and collecting
royalties.

Strengthen Relationships with Integrated Circuit Designers. We receive royalties from our licensed
integrated circuit manufacturers based upon the number of chips or wafers, depending on the license, that
they manufacture which contain our IP components. We seek to strengthen our relationships with the
integrated circuit design companies that drive integrated circuit production through the provision of
trusted high performance IP components, product customization services and other value-added services,
to ensure that we are the supplier of choice for integrated circuit designers and manufacturers.

Leverage Product Development Process, We have developed a large portfolio of IP building blocks and
design tools that allow us to develop new products rapidly. We believe that our development time for
additional products may decrease over time due to our growing base of knowledge and understanding of
various manufacturing processes and design requirements. We intend to continue to improve the
efficiency of our product development process in order to decrease product delivery time.

Maintain Technological Leadership. Our customers evaluate 1P components based on speed, density,
power, quality, compatibility with a given manufacturing process, reliability and price. Against these
evaluation criteria, we believe that we currently have a position of technological leadership. We intend to
maintain our technological leadership position by continuing to develop, internally or through possible
acquisitions, a significant portfolio of IP building blocks upon which we can base new generations of
products and by making enhancements to our existing products. We also intend to maintain our expertise
in state of the art manufacturing processes by working with customers during their development efforts for
new manufacturing processes.

THE ARTISAN SOLUTION
Our IP components are designed to offer customers the following benefits:

Performance, Power and Reliability. We deliver high performance, high density, low power and high
reliability IP components through a combination of design expertise, proprietary technology and design
tools. Qur IP components, which are customized, verified and tested for a particular manufacturing
process, require little or no integration by customers and have been proven by use in over 100 different
manufacturing processes. Many of our products are designed to achieve speeds in excess of 1 GHz.

Significant Time-to-Market Advantages. We enable semiconductor companies to reduce the time
required to bring new integrated circuits to market by (i) eliminating the customer’s need to design IP
components, (ii) delivering products designed for a specific manufacturing process and (iii) delivering
products ready for use with industry standard and proprietary integrated circuit design tools. Our products
can be reused in multiple customer designs, which reduces the design cycle and decreases time to market
for new integrated circuits.

Long Term Product Development Path. Our technology provides semiconductor companies with reliable
building blocks for future generations of their complex integrated circuit designs. Our ability to adapt and
customize IP components used in one process and one design for reuse in additional designs and processes
provides each customer with a ready source of reliable IP components for future designs and processes.
This enables our customers to standardize on our products, accelerate their product development and focus
internal engineering resources on core competencies, including semiconductor design and manufacturing
processes.

Cost Effective Solutions. As semiconductor manufacturing process geometries shrink and the complexity
of integrated circuit designs increases, the cost to design system-on-a-chip integrated circuits increases
significantly. By providing reliable products with significant time-to-market benefits, we enable customers
to reduce design costs, minimize integration costs and increase manufacturing yield. Moreover, by using
our products, semiconductor companies avoid the cost of recruiting and training a significant group of
engineers dedicated to IP component design.




PRODUCTS

Our current family of IP components includes high performance, high density and low power memory, standard
cell and input/output components. Cur contracts with customers generally require them to pay a license fee to us
ranging from approximately $250,000 to $650,000 for each product delivered under a contract.

Our products are developed and delivered using a proprietary methodology that includes a set of design tools,
techniques and specific design expertise that we call “Process-Perfect™.” This methodology ensures that our IP
components are designed to achieve the best combination of performance, density, power and yield for a given
manufacturing process. In addition, we have created a flexible portfolio of IP building blocks. This portfolio,
combined with the Process-Perfect methodology, allows us to satisfy our customers’ schedule and quality
requirements in a cost effective manner. Our [P components are easily integrated into a variety of customer
design methodologies and support industry standard integrated circuit design tools, including those from
electronic design automation tool vendors such as Cadence Design Systems, Inc., Mentor Graphics Corporation
and Synopsys, Inc., as well as customers’ proprietary integrated circuit design tools. To support these various
integrated circuit design tool environments, each of our products includes a comprehensive set of verified tool
models.

Memory Products

Our embedded memory products include random access memories, read only memories and register files. Our
high speed, high density and low power products include single- and dual-port random access memories; read
only memories; and single-, two-and three-port register files. Our embedded memory products are configurable
and vary in size to meet the customer’s specification. For example, our memory products will support sizes from
2 to 128 bits wide and from 8 to 16,384 words. All of our memory products include features such as a power
down mode, low voltage data retention and fully static operation. In addition, our memory products may include
built-in test interfaces that support popular test methodologies.

High Speed Mewmory Family. Our high speed products are designed to achieve speeds in excess of 1 GHz
for 0.13um manufacturing processes. We achieve the high performance of our memory products through a
combination of proprietary design innovations that include latch based sense amplifiers, high speed row
select technology, precise core cell balancing and rapid recovery bitlines.

High Density Memory Family. Our high density products are designed for applications where achieving
the lowest possible manufacturing cost is critical. These are typically consumer applications with high
manufacturing volumes. To achieve the lowest possible manufacturing cost for these products, we utilize
proprietary circuit and layout techniques to reduce the overall area of the memories. In addition, we use
specific design and analysis techniques to enhance production yield.

Low Power Memory Famify. Cur low power products are designed to prolong battery life when used in
battery-powered electronic systems. These products achieve low power through a combination of
proprietary design innovations that include latch-based sense amplifiers, a power efficient banked memory
architecture, precise core cell balancing and unique address decoder and driver circuitry.

Flex-Repair™, To improve the yield of integrated circuits containing large amounts of embedded
memory, we have introduced a line of memory products, known as Flex-Repair™ that include redundant
storage elements. The dense layout structures that are characteristic of large memory arrays are often the
most difficult part of an integrated circuit to manufacture. Gur Flex-Repair products allow memories to be
repaired, thereby increasing the manufacturing yield of the resulting integrated circuit design.

Standard Cell Products

Our SAGE-X™ standard cell product includes over 500 cells optimized for each customer’s preferred
manufacturing process and integrated circuit design tool environment to result in greater density as compared to
competitive standard cell products. We offer standard cell products that are optimized for high performance, high
density or low power to meet the needs of different markets.




Input/Output Products

Our input/output library includes over 600 standard input/output functions. We also offer a wide variety of
specialized input/output products that are compatible with industry standard PCI, GTL, AGP, USB, SSTL2 and
LVDS interfaces. In addition, we offer input/output products for many additional industry standard interfaces.
Every input/output product utilizes each customer’s proprietary manufacturing process rules, pad pitch and ESD
requirements, resulting in superior performance, reliability and manufacturability.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

We target the rapidly growing system-on-a-chip market with high performance, high density and low power
memory, standard cell and input/output products. Because of the complexity of these products, our design and
development process is a multidisciplinary effort requiring expertise in electronic circuit design, process
technology, physical layout, design software, model generation, data analysis and processing and general
integrated circuit design. These activities involve the development of more advanced versions of our products
and the continued development of new products for current and anticipated manufacturing processes.

Engineering costs are allocated between cost of revenues and product development expenses. Engineering efforts
devoted to developing products for specific customer projects are recognized as cost of revenues while the
balance of engineering costs, incurred for general development of our technology, is charged to product
development. We expect that we will continue to invest substantial funds for engineering activities.

As of September 30, 2002, our engineering staff had 128 employees. We seek to recruit highly skilled

employees, and our ability to attract and retain such employees will be a principal factor in our success in

maintaining our leading technological position. We believe that such investments in product development are

required in order for us to remain competitive and we believe our team of software developers and our

development capabilities represent a significant competitive advantage. Our fiscal year-end is September 30. Our

product development expenses were $11.9 million in fiscal 2002, $12.4 million in fiscal 2001 and $6.8 million in
"~ fiscal 2000. ’

SALES, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

We license our products on a nonexclusive, worldwide basis to major semiconductor manufacturers and grant
these manufacturers the right to distribute our IP components to their internal design teams and to their
application specific integrated circuit and fabless semiconductor customers. For most of our integrated circuit
manufacturing customers, we perform all or part of the distribution and licensing of our products to the
integrated circuit design companies that use such manufacturers to produce their designs. While the basic
elements of our product libraries are distributed at no charge, design companies can pay us a direct license and
support fee to receive modified products and support from us. As part of the license agreement entered into by
the design companies, the design companies agree to manufacture any semiconductor design using any of our
products at the particular semiconductor manufacturer for which we developed the products. The semiconductor
manufacturer then pays us a royalty based on the volume of the semiconductor manufacturer’s production
containing our IP components.

We have several industry partner programs whereby our partners provide a wide variety of IP solutions, design
services and tool support to streamline the design process for users of our IP components. Through these
programs, we provide products and support to over 150 companies who use these products in support of our
licensed users.

We believe our sales, marketing and distribution approach enables us to leverage our customers’ sales and
marketing organizations and limit the costs associated with hiring, training and compensating the large sales
force necessary to negotiate with each end-user customer. We have sales offices in Tokyo, Japan and Paris,
France. Additionally, we rely in part on consulting companies in Korea to assist our sales efforts in that market.

Historically, a substantial portion of our revenue has been derived from customers outside the United States.
International revenue, primarily from Asia and Europe, represented 75% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002,
70% in fiscal 2001 and 86% in fiscal 2000. We anticipate that international revenue will remain a substantial
portion of our total revenues in the future. To date, all of the revenue from international customers has been
denominated in U.S. dollars.




CUSTOMERS

We focus on licensing our products and providing related services to semiconductor manufacturers and
integrated circuit design companies. Many of the world’s leading semiconductor manufacturers are among our
customers including: Chartered, Dongbu, Fujitsu, IBM, 1* Silicon, Infineon, Jazz, National, NEC, Sanyo, Sharp,
Siemens, Silterra, TSMC and UMC. Qur license fee and royalty based business model enables widespread
product distribution and licensing to integrated circuit design companies who are the customers of the
semiconductor manufacturers. To date, we have licensed our products to over 100 integrated circuit design
companies. In addition, we have several industry partner programs whereby members provide a wide variety of
IP and microprocessor solutions, design services and tool support to streamline the design process for our library
users.

We have been dependent on a relatively small number of customers for a substantial portion of our annual
revenue, although the customers comprising this group have changed from time to time. In fiscal 2002, TSMC
accounted for 39% of our total revenues. In fiscal 2001, TSMC accounted for 26% of our total revenues and
Synopsys accounted for 12% of our total revenues. In fiscal 2000, TSMC accounted for 35% of our total
revenues, Sharp accounted for 12% of our total revenues and NEC accounted for 10% of our total revenues. We
anticipate that our revenue will continue to depend on a limited number of major customers for the foreseeable
future, although the companies considered to be major customers and the percentage of revenue represented by
each major customer may vary from period to period depending on the addition of new contracts and the number
of designs utilizing our products.

COMPETITION

Our strategy of targeting semiconductor manufacturers and integrated circuit design companies that participate
in, or may enter, the system-on-a-chip market requires us to compete in intensely competitive markets. We face
significant competition from third party IP component providers, such as DOLPHIN Integration SA, Faraday
Technology Corporation, LEDA Systems, Inc., VeriSilicon Microelectronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Virage Logic
Corporation, Virtual Silicon Technology, Inc., and from the internal design groups of semiconductor
manufacturers, such as TSMC. In addition, we face competition from small consulting firms and design
companies that operate in the library segment of the market and offer a limited selection of specialized IP
components.

We face significant competition from the internal design groups of semiconductor manufacturers that have
expanded their manufacturing capabilities and portfolio of IP components to participate in the system-on-a-chip
market. Semiconductor manufacturers that license our products have historically had their own internal IP
component design groups. These design groups continue to compete with us for access to the parent’s IP
component requisitions and, in some cases, compete with us to supply IP components to third parties on a
merchant basis. IP components developed by internal design groups are designed to utilize the qualities of their
own manufacturing process, and may therefore benefit from certain capacity, informational, cost and technical
advantages. If internal design groups expand their product offerings to compete directly with our products or
actively seek to participate as vendors in the IP component market, then our revenue and operating results could
be negatively affected.

TSMC, our largest customer, has announced that it intends to more aggressively supply internally developed IP
components for its manufacturing processes to integrated circuit design companies through multiple library and
EDA tool partners, including our competitors. TSMC has substantially greater financial, manufacturing and
other resources, name recognition and market presence than us and the internal design group at TSMC has
greater access to technical information about TSMC’s manufacturing processes. Distribution partners selected by
TSMC may have greater resources, name recognition and distribution networks than us. If TSMC is successful
in supplying IP components to third parties either directly or through distribution arrangements with other
companies, our revenue and operating results could be negatively affected.

We may also face competition from vendors such as Cadence, Mentor Graphics and Synopsys, which supply
electronic design automation, or EDA, software tools. IP component offerings from leading EDA companies
may benefit from greater integration into EDA tool design flows and may also benefit from distribution through
more established and widely-used distribution networks. We cannot be certain that we will be able to compete
successfully against such EDA companies.




In connection with our acquisition of certain assets of the physical library business of Synopsys in January 2001,
Synopsys agreed that it would not engage in the development, sale, marketing or support of certain IP
components for a period of two years commencing in January 2001. If, upon termination of this restriction,
Synopsys elects to engage in the development, sale, marketing or support of IP components that compete with
our IP components, our revenue and operating results could be negatively affected. Synopsys recently acquired
Avant! Corporation, including its physical library business, which competes against us. We believe that the
January 2001 agreements between us and Synopsys require Synopsys to suspend operations of such business,
other than maintenance and support of existing contracts, until January 2003 and exercise commercially
reasonable efforts to sell such business to a third party, subject to our right of first refusal. If Synopsys sells the
Avant! physical library business to a third party or elects to operate such business itself, then our revenue and
operating results could be negatively affected.

PATENTS AND IP PROTECTION

We rely primarily on a combination of nondisclosure agreements and other contractual provisions and patent,
trademark, trade secret, and copyright law to protect our proprietary rights. We have an active program to protect
our proprietary technology through the filing of patents. As of September 30, 2002, we had 28 U.S. patents
granted, 19 patent applications pending before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, 3 issued foreign patents
and 13 pending patent applications in foreign countries.

We also rely on trademark and trade secret laws to protect our IP. We protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through confidentiality agreements with our employees and customers in addition to
other security measures. Despite these efforts, there can be no assurance that others will not gain access to our
trade secrets, that such trade secrets will not be independently discovered by competitors or that we can
meaningfully protect our IP. In addition, effective trade secret protection and enforcement may be unavailable or
limited in certain foreign countries. Although we intend to protect our rights vigorously, we cannot assure you
that such measures will be successful.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

We offer various IP components and seérvices to our customers; however, we do not manage operations by these
IP components and services. Instead, we view our Company as one operating segment when making business
decisions. The Company uses one measurement of profitability for its business. We currently operate principally
in the United States, Taiwan, Japan and other countries in Asia and Europe.

Historically, a substantial portion of our total revenues have been derived from customers outside the United
States, primarily from Asia and Europe. International revenue as a percentage of our total revenues was
approximately 75% in fiscal 2002, 70% in fiscal 2001 and 86% in fiscal 2000. We anticipate that international
revenue will remain a substantial portion of our total revenues in the future. To date, all of the revenue from
international customers has been denominated in U.S. dollars. However, we face increasing pressure from our
customers in Europe to denominate sales to such customers in Euro. If we elect to denominate some or all of our
sales to European customers in Euro, we may attempt to address the associated currency risk by engaging in
foreign currency hedging transactions.

EMPLOYEES

As of September 30, 2002, we had 181 employees and full-time equivalents compared to 163 at September 30,
2001. In the event that we complete our proposed acquisition of NurLogic Design, Inc., or NurLogic and
establish our Indian subsidiary, we expect our total worldwide employee and full-time equivalent count to be
approximately 307. None of our employees are represented by a labor union or are subject to a collective
bargaining agreement. We have never experienced a work stoppage and believe that our relations with
employees are good.




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers as of October 1, 2002:

Name Age Position

Mark R. Templeton 43 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Joy E. Leo 41 Vice President, Finance and Administration, Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary

Harry Dickinson 55 Chief Operating Officer

G. Lee Allgood 59 Vice President, Worldwide Sales

Scott T. Becker 42 Chief Technical Officer and Director

Neal Carney 46 Vice President, Marketing

Brent Dichter 41 Vice President, Engineering

Dhrumil Gandhi 45 Senior Vice President, Product Technology

James H. Hogan 50 Senior Vice President, Business Development

Mark R. Templeton has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since April 1991 when he
co-founded Artisan Components. In addition, Mr. Templeton has served as a member of our Board of Directors
since April 1991. From April 1990 to March 1991, Mr, Templeton was director of the Custom IC Design Group
at Mentor Graphics, an EDA company. From October 1984 to March 1990, he held various positions with
Silicon Compilers Systems Corporation, an EDA company, with the last position being Director of the Custom
IC Design Group.

Joy E. Leo has served as our Vice President of Finance and Administration, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary since September 2000. From January 2000 to August 2000, she served as Vice President of Finance
and Administration and Chief Financial Cfficer for IMP, Inc, a semiconductor company. From August 1998 to
January 2000, she was Vice President of Finance, Operations and Administration at Innomedia Incorporated, a
telecommunications company. From June 1995 to January 1998, she was Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer for Philips Components, a division of Royal Philips Electronics N.V.

Harry Dickinson has served as our Chief Operating Officer since June 2001. From December 1998 to January
2000, Mr. Dickinson was Vice President of Worldwide Sales for Cygnus Solutions (now Red Hat, Inc.), a
computer software distribution company. From October 1997 to October 1998, he was President and CEQO of
Entridia Corporation a network controller company of which he was also a founder. From January 1992 to
October 1997, he was Senior Vice President of Sales for S3 Incorporated, a fabless semiconductor company
specializing in graphics chips.

G. Lee Allgood has served as our Vice President of Worldwide Sales since June 2001. From April 1993 to April
1998, he was Vice President of North American Sales for S3 Incorporated. From April 1991 to April 1993,
Mr. Allgood was Eastern United States Regional Sales Manager for Valid, an EDA company, which was
acquired by Cadence in 1992.

Scott T. Becker has served as our Chief Technical Officer since April 1991 when he co-founded Artisan
Components. In addition, Mr. Becker has served as a member of our Board of Directors since April 1991. From
April 1990 to April 1991, he was manager of the library development group at the IC Division of Mentor
Graphics. From May 1985 to April 1990, he was responsible for library development at Silicon Compilers.

Neal Carney has served as our Vice President of Marketing since August 2001. From June 2000 to August 2001,
he was Vice President of Marketing for Tripath Technology, a fabless semiconductor company. From January
1998 to June 2000, he was Business Unit Manager of Imaging Products for Agilent Technologies, Inc., a
technology company focusing on communications, electronics and life sciences. From January 1994 to January
1998, Mr. Carney was Marketing Manager of the Integrated Circuit Division at Hewlett-Packard Company.
From November 1982 to January of 1994 Mr. Carney held various marketing management positions at Hewlett
Packard including a three year international assignment from May 1987 to May 1990 as the Japan Marketing
Center manager for Hewlett-Packard’s Semiconductor Products Group.




Brent Dichter has served as our Vice President of Engineering since May 2001. Mr. Dichter served as our Vice
President of Product/Program Management from March 2000 to May 2001, and as our Director of Engineering
from November 1998 to March 2000. From January 1997 to November 1998, he served as Vice President of
Silicon Technology at Multi Dimensional Computing, a computer company specializing in graphics chip design.
From July 1995 to January 1997, he was Director of Strategic Marketing for Xilinx Incorporated, a field
programmable gate array company.

Dhrumil Gandhi has served as our Senior Vice President of Product Technology since May 2001. From May
1993 to May 2001, Mr. Gandhi served as our Vice President of Engineering. From July 1983 to May 1993, he
served as Senior Manager for Advanced ASIC Design Systems at Mentor Graphics.

James H. Hogan has served as our Senior Vice President of Business Development since October 2002. From
August 2000 to September 2002, he was Senior Vice President of Business Development and Chief Technology
Officer of Cadence. From February 1997 to October 2000, Mr. Hogan held several positions at Cadence
including President of Cadence Japan from December 1999 to October 2000, Corporate Vice President of
Marketing from December 1998 to December 1999, and Corporate Vice President for Field Operations from
February 1997 to December 1998. From December 1996 to February 1997, he was Chief Operating Officer of
Smart Machines, Inc., a semiconductor equipment automation company. From November 1999 to September
2002, Mr. Hogan served on the Board of NurLogic, a semiconductor IP company.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our executive, administrative and technical offices currently occupy 54,489 square feet in Sunnyvale, California,
under a lease that expires in 2008. We are currently planning to sublet the 32,660 square foot space we formerly
occupied in Sunnyvale, California. This lease expires in 2004. We also lease 1,204 square feet of sales and
support office space in Tokyo, Japan, which expires in 2004. We also lease 387 square feet of sales and support
office space in Paris, France, which expires in 2002, but is renewable at our option for three, six or nine years.
We believe that these facilities will be adequate and suitable for our near-term needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Price Range of Common Stock

Our Common Stock has been quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “ARTI” since our initial
public offering on February 3, 1998. Prior to such time, there was no public market for our Common Stock. The
following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices per share of our Common Stock
as reported on the Nasdaq National Market.

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending
September 30, 2002 September 30, 2001

High Low High Low
First Quarter $17.400 $ 6.950 $13.125 §5.313
Second Quarter $17.950 $11.861 $13.500 $5.688
Third Quarter $16.500 $ 8.260 $10.200 $5.438
Fourth Quarter $ 9940 $ 6840 $10490 $5.850

On December 20, 2002, the reported last sale price of our Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market was
$16.40 per share.

Dividend Policy

Since March 1996, when we converted to a C corporation from a subchapter S corporation, we have not declared
or paid any cash dividends on our Common Stock or other securities. We presently intend to retain future
earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.

Holders of Common Stock

As of October 31, 2002, there were approximately 60 stockholders of record of our Common Stock, not
including those stockholders holding shares in street or nominee name.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The balance sheet data as of September 30,
2002 and 2001 and the statement of operations data for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and
2000 are derived from the financial statements that have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
independent accountants, and which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The balance
sheet data as of September 30, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and the statement of operations data for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 1999 and 1998 are derived from the financial statements that have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, and which are not included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in the future.

In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the acquisition of certain assets of Synopsys’ physical library
business resulted in a significant increase in our costs and expenses relating primarily to the increased headcount
and amortization of goodwill and other intangibles associated with the acquisition. The acquisition has affected
the comparability of the selected financial data set forth below.
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Fiscal Years Ended September 30,
2002 2001 2008 1999 1998
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue:
License $ 27,728 §$ 21,136 $17,042 $14,138 $16,568
Net royalty 9,518 4,621 3,250 729 —
Total revenues 37,246 25,757 20,292 14,867 16,568
Total costs and expenses 34,414 36,787 21,622 18,292 14,494
Operating income (loss) 2,832 (11,030)  (1,330)  (3,425) 2,074
Interest and other (expense) income, net (377 1,226 2,945 2,024 1,175
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income
taxes 2,455 (9,804) 1,615 (1,401) 3,249
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 340 4,168 533 (858) 923
Net income (loss) $ 2,115 $(13,972) § 1,082 § (543) § 2,326

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic (1) $§ 013 § (08 $ 0.08 § (0.04) § 022

Diluted (1) $ 012 $ (0.88) § 007 $ (0.04) $ 0.18
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per

share:

Basic 16,716 15,965 14,334 13,569 10,457

Diluted 17,991 15,965 15,456 13,569 12,917

At September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $52244 $ 42329 $54,016 $48,181 $47,204
Working capital 50,955 41,214 56,571 50,612 49,874
Total assets 82,448 73,026 71,930 64,344 59,489
Long term liabilities, net of current portion 2,422 689 235 174 218
Total stockholders’ equity 69,160 63,385 63,454 57,120 55,539

(1) For an explanation of net income/(loss) per share and shares used in per share calculations, see Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain statements in this “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” are forward-looking statements. The
Jorward-looking statements contained herein are based on current expectations and entail various risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as
“may,” “will,” “could” “should,” “expect,” “believe,” “‘anticipate,” “estimate,” “conmtinue,” “plan,
“intend,” “project,” or other similar words. Readers are cautioned that these forward-looking statements are
only predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore,
actual results may differ materially and adversely from those that expressed in any forward-looking statements.
Readers are referved to risks and uncertainties identified below, and in the documents filed by us with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, specifically the most recent reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, each as
it may be amended from time to time. We undertake no obligation to revise or update publicly any
Jorward-looking statements for any reason.

2

Overview

We are a leading developer of high performance, high density and low power embedded memory, standard cell
and input/output IP components for the design and manufacture of complex integrated circuits or
semiconductors. We license our products to customers for the design of integrated circuits used in complex, high
volume applications, such as portable computing devices, cellular phones, consumer multimedia products,
automotive electronics, personal computers, workstations and servers.

Our customers include foundries, which only manufacture integrated circuits, integrated device manufacturers,
which design and manufacture integrated circuits, and companies that design integrated circuits for manufacture
by third parties. Integrated circuit manufacturers invest significant resources in libraries that are designed to
match their specific manufacturing processes. Our IP library products are designed to enable these manufacturers
to achieve the best combination of performance, density, power and yield for a given manufacturing process. We
provide a layer of reliable IP components that help ensure integrated circuits will work to specification before
they are manufactured. This process interface layer is important since every integrated circuit design must be
mapped into a specific manufacturing process to achieve targeted performance and yield. As a result, integrated
circuit designers view optimized IP components as a critical link between the design of an integrated circuit and
the manufacturing process. Typically, an integrated circuit manufacturer licenses one or more products designed
for its manufacturing process that is accompanied by layout databases, views to support a customer’s design tool
environment and design methodology documentation.

We license our products on a nonexclusive, worldwide basis to major integrated circuit manufacturers and grant
these manufacturers the right to distribute our products to their internal design teams and to their integrated
circuit design customers. We charge manufacturers a license fee that gives them the right to manufacture
integrated circuits containing products we have developed for their manufacturing process. In addition,
manufacturers agree to pay us royalties based on manufacturing volumes of integrated circuits that include our
products. A portion of such royalty payments is then credited back to the manufacturer’s account to be applied
against future license fees, if any, payable by such manufacturer.

For most of our integrated circuit manufacturing customers, we perform all or part of the distribution and
licensing of our products to the integrated circuit design companies that use such manufacturers to produce their
designs. In performing this distribution and licensing function, we have licensed our products to over 1,000
design companies. When distributing our products to integrated circuit design companies, we make the core set
of our product libraries available to our licensed companies at no charge. We also provide customized IP
component products and services to our licensed customers on a separate fee basis.

We have several industry partner programs whereby our partners provide a wide variety of IP solutions, design
services and tool support to streamline the design process for users of our IP components. Through these
programs, we provide products and support to over 150 companies who use these products in support of our
licensed users.
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SOURCES OF REVENUE

The license of our products to a integrated circuit manufacturer typically involves a sales cycle of six to nine
months and often coincides with a customer’s migration to a new manufacturing process. Our contracts with
customers generally require them to pay a license fee to us ranging from approximately $250,000 to $650,000
for each product delivered under a contract. OQur contracts generally require payment of a portion of the license
fees upon signing of the contract with the final payment due within 30 to 60 days after delivery, which generally
takes six to nine months.

We have been dependent on a relatively small number of customers for a substantial portion of our revenue,
although the customers comprising this group have changed from time to time. In fiscal 2002, TSMC accounted
for 39% of total revenues. In fiscal 2001, TSMC accounted for 26% of total revenues and Synopsys accounted
for 12% of total revenues. In fiscal 2000, TSMC accounted for 35% of total revenues, Sharp accounted for 12%
of total revenues and NEC accounted for 10% of total revenues. We anticipate that our revenue will continue to
depend on a limited number of major customers for the foreseeable future, although the companies considered to
be major customers and the percentage of revenue represented by each major customer may vary from period to
period depending on the addition of new contracts and the number of designs utilizing our products.

We derive a substantial majority of our total revenues from license fees associated with the sale of product
licenses, including support and maintenance fees. Together, these license, support and maintenance fees
accounted for 74% of total revenues in fiscal 2002, 82% of total revenues in fiscal 2001 and 84% of total
revenues in fiscal 2000. We expect that license revenue will continue to account for a substantial portion of our
total revenues for the foreseeable future.

Royalty revenue is calculated based on unit sales by manufacturers of integrated circuits or wafers containing
our [P components. License arrangements dictate royalty reporting by each customer on either a per-chip or
per-wafer basis. Given that we provide our products early in the customer’s integrated circuit design process,
there is a delay of approximately three to four years, if at all, between the time we deliver a product and the time
we receive royalty revenue when the semiconductors incorporating our products are manufactured and sold.

To date, a substantial portion of our net royalty revenue has been derived from one customer, TSMC, which
accounted for §9% of net royalty revenue in fiscal 2002, 88% in fiscal 2001 and 97% in fiscal 2000. Royalty
rates may vary among customers, and in certain cases, with respect to specific process geometries, or product
generations, may decline over time. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to generate royalty revenue
from a substantially larger number of designs and on many of these designs achieving large manufacturing
volumes.

Net royalty revenue as a percentage of total revenues was 26% in fiscal 2002, 18% in fiscal 2001 and 16% in
fiscal 2000. We expect royalty revenue to grow as a percentage of total revenues; however, we expect that
royalty revenue as a percentage of total revenues may vary significantly from quarter to quarter. For example,
net royalty revenue as a percentage of total revenues was 21% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, 26% in the
third quarter of fiscal 2002, 31% in the second quarter of fiscal 2002 and 26% in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes
the significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, assumptions and judgments including those related to revenue
recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, warranty costs, goodwill impairments, contingencies, restructuring
costs and other special charges and taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The results of these estimates form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our
critical accounting policies are described in the following paragraphs:
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Our revenue recognition policy is a significant accounting policy for us because our revenue is a key component
of our results of operations. In addition, our revenue recognition determines the timing of certain expenses. We
follow specific and detailed guidelines in recognizing revenue in accordance with the provisions of AICPA
Statement of Position 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition” as amended by Statement of Position 98-4 and
Statement of Position 98-9, as well as Accounting Research Bulletin No. 45, “Long-Term Construction-Type
Contracts” and Statement of Position 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
Production-Type Contracts;” however, judgments may affect the application of our revenue recognition policy.
Revenue in any given period is difficult to predict, and any shortfall in revenue or delay in recognizing revenue
could cause our operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter and could result in future operating
losses.

We recognize and report revenue in two separate categories: license revenue and net royalty revenue. License
revenue is comprised of license fees, maintenance fees and support fees. License fees are derived from the
purchase of a license for our products. Maintenance fees are derived from maintenance contracts, which form
part of a licensing arrangement. Support fees are derived from arrangements with customers of our licensed
foundries to support the use of our libraries in their designs. Royalty revenue is derived from fees associated with
the volume of a licensee’s production and sales of semiconductors or wafers containing our Intellectual Property
or “IP.”

License Revenue

For all licenses, we use both a binding purchase order and a signed license agreement as evidence of an
arrangement. We assess cash collectibility based on a number of factors, including past collection history with
the customer and the credit worthiness of the customer. In cases where a customer’s credit worthiness is
uncertain, we require a letter of credit as assurance of payment. If we determine that collection of a fee is not
probable, we defer the revenue and recognize it at the time collection becomes probable.

For licensed products which do not require significant customization of the Company’s I[P component, license
revenue is generally recognized when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
the software has been shipped or electronically delivered, the license fee is fixed or determinable, and collection
of the resulting receivable is probable.

For licensed products requiring significant customization of our IP component, license revenue is generally
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting over the period that services are
performed. For all license and service agreements accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method, we
determine progress-to-completion based on actual direct labor hours incurred to date as a percentage of the
estimated total direct labor hours required to complete the project. We periodically evaluate the actual status of
each project to ensure that the estimates to complete each contract remains accurate. A provision for estimated
losses on engagements is made in the period in which the loss becomes probable and can be reasonably
estimated. To date, such losses have not been significant. Costs incurred in advance of billings are recorded as
costs in excess of related billings on uncompleted contracts. If the amounts of revenue recognized exceed the
amounts received from customers, the excess amount is recorded as unbilled contract receivables. If the amounts
billed exceed the amounts of revenue recognized, the excess amount is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenue
recognized in any period is dependent on our progress toward completion of projects in development. Significant
management judgment and discretion is used to estimate total direct labor hours. Any changes in or deviation
from these estimates could have a material effect on the amount of revenue recognized in any period.

For arrangements with multiple elements, we allocate revenue to each element of a transaction based upon its
fair value as determined in reliance on vendor specific objective evidence. Vendor specific objective evidence of
fair value for all elements of an arrangement is based upon the normal pricing and discounting practices for those
licensed products and services when sold separately and, for maintenance, is additionally measured by the
renewal rate. If we cannot objectively determine the fair value of any undelivered element included in license
arrangements, we defer revenue until all elements are delivered, services have been performed, or until fair value
can objectively be determined. When the fair value of a license element has not been established, we use the
residual method to record license revenue if the fair value of all undelivered elements is determinable. Under the
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residual method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the
arrangement fee is allocated to the delivered elements and is recognized as revenue.

Maintenance fees are derived from maintenance contracts, which are part of the licensing arrangement.
Maintenance fees include telephone and email support and the right to receive unspecified upgrades on a
when-and-if available basis. First year maintenance is typically sold with the related licensed product and may be
renewed on an annual basis thereafter. Maintenance fees are deferred based on vendor-specific objective
evidence of fair value and recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance period. Vendor-specific objective
evidence of maintenance is generally determined based on renewal rates stated in individual contracts.

Support fees are derived from arrangements with customers of our licensed foundries to support the use of our
libraries in their designs. Support fees include telephone and email support and the right to receive unspecified
upgrades on a when-an-if available basis. Support fees are recognized ratably over the support period. Support is
generally for a period of 12 months and may be renewed on an annual basis.

Reyalty Revenue

Royalty revenue is recognized based on royalty reports received from our customers, generally on a
one-quarter-lag basis. According to contract terms, a portion of each royalty payment is credited back to the
customer’s account for use as payment of license fees for future orders placed with us. The remaining portion of
the royalty is reported as net royalty revenue. The amount of credits that can be earned by a customer is limited
to the cumulative amount of orders placed by that customer for a given process technology. A customer has a
limited time to use the credits before they expire, generally 18 months from the time royalties are earned. As a
result, we defer any royalty revenue associated with our “credit-back” program until the customer purchases
additional licenses or the “credit-back” expires, whichever is earlier. If the customer does not use the credits
within this period, we record the amount of expired credits as net royalty revenue as we no longer have an
obligation to provide any future products for such expired credits. Historically, customers have utilized
substantially all credit-backs to purchase our licensed products prior to expiration of such credit-backs. When
credit-backs are utilized, we recognize the resulting license revenue when our revenue recognition criteria have
been met.

WARRANTY COSTS

We accrue for warranty costs based on historical trends in product return rates and the expected labor costs to
provide warranty services. If we were to experience an increase in warranty claims compared with our historical
experience, or costs of servicing warranty claims were greater than the expectations on which the accrual had
been based, our gross margins could be adversely affected.

ALLOWANCE FOR DPOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to
make required payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the collectibility of
specific customer accounts and the aging of the accounts receivable. If there were a deterioration of a major
customer’s creditworthiness, or actual defaults were higher than our historical experience, our estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due to us could be overstated, which could have an adverse impact on our operating
results. The impact of any such change or deviation may be increased by our reliance on a relatively small
number of customers for a large portion of our total revenues.

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENTS

On October 1, 2001, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and were required to analyze our goodwill for impairment. The
determination of the value of goodwill requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our
Consolidated Financial Statements. In assessing the recoverability of our goodwill, management must make
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine fair value of the respective
assets. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record
impairment charges for these assets. We perform goodwill impairment tests on an annual basis and between
annual tests in certain circumstances whenever events may indicate an impairment exists. In response to changes
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in industry and market conditions, we may be required to strategically realign our resources and consider
restructuring, disposing or otherwise exiting businesses, which could result in an impairment of goodwill.

CONTINGENCIES

We are subject to the possibility of various loss contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business. We
consider the likelihood of loss or impairment of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, as well as our ability to
reasonably estimate the amount of loss in determining loss contingencies. An estimated loss contingency is
accrued when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of
loss can be reasonably estimated. We regularly evaluate current information available to us to determine whether
such accruals should be adjusted.

ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be
realized. We consider historical and future taxable income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of
future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance. As of September 30, 2002, we recorded a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax
assets. Should we determine that it is more likely than not that we would be able to realize all or part of the
deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the net deferred tax asset would increase income in the period
such determination was made. Likewise, should we determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of
any deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to income in the
period such determination was made.

ACQUISITIONS

On October 21, 2002, we announced a definitive agreement to acquire NurLogic, a privately held technology
firm headquartered in San Diego, California. NurLogic supplies high-performance mixed signal and
communications IP to the semiconductor industry. Under the terms of the agreement, we expect to acquire
NurLogic for consideration of approximately $21 million consisting of cash and stock. This acquisition will be
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and is expected to close in the second quarter of fiscal
2003. Our acquisition of NurLogic is expected to result in a significant increase in our costs and expenses
relating primarily to the increased headcount and amortization of purchased intangible assets. This acquisition
will affect the comparability of our Consolidated Financial Statements.

On January 4, 2001, we acquired certain assets of Synopsys’ physical library business for approximately $27.4
million. We accounted for the acquisition under the purchase method of accounting. Notes 2 and 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements outline the details of the purchase price allocation and pro forma financial
information related to the acquisition. Upon consummation of our acquisition of certain assets of the Synopsys
physical library business, we immediately charged to expense $2.4 million representing acquired in-process
technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. In fiscal 2001, the
acquisition of certain assets of Synopsys’ physical library business resulted in a significant increase in our costs
and expenses relating primarily to the increased headcount and amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
associated with the acquisition. In fiscal 2002, we ceased amortization of goodwill in accordance with SFAS
142. The acquisition has affected the comparability of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data as a percentage of
our total revenues:

Years ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Revenue:
License 74.4% 82.1% 84.0%
Net royalty 25.6 17.9 16.0
Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 223 232 26.9
Product development 31.8 48.3 33.7
Sales and marketing 23.6 252 34.5
General and administrative 94 13.1 11.5
In-process research and development — 9.5 —
Amortization of purchased intangible assets 5.3 5.7 —
Amortization of goodwill and acquired workforce — 17.8 —
Total costs and expenses 924 142.8 106.6
Operating income (loss) 7.6 (42.8) (6.6)
Interest and other (expense) income, net (1.0) 4.7 14.5
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 6.6 (38.1) 7.9
Provision for income taxes 0.9 16.1 2.6
Net income (loss) 5.7% (54.2)% 5.3%

Fiscal Years 2002, 2001 and 2000

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
Total Revenues (8 In Thousands) 2002 Inc / (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Dec) 2000
License revenue $27,728 31%  $21,136 24% $17,042
Net royalty revenue 9,518 106% 4,621 42% 3,250
Total revenues $37,246 45% $25,757 27% $20,292

Our total revenues increased by 45% in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001. The increase in total revenues was
primarily attributable to increased license revenue of $6.6 million and an increase in net royalty revenue of $4.9
million. Gross royalty payments are calculated based on per unit sales of integrated circuits or wafers containing
our IP components. Gross royalties for fiscal 2002 were $13.3 million. From this amount, $3.8 million was
credited back to the customer’s account for use as payment of license fees for future orders to be placed with us.
The remaining portion of gross royalty revenue, or $9.5 million in fiscal 2002, was reported as net royalty
revenue in fiscal 2002.

Our total revenues increased by 27% in fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000. The increase in total revenues was
primarily attributable to an increase in license revenue of $4.0 million and an increase in net royalty revenue of
$1.4 million. Gross royalties for fiscal 2001 were $6.6 million. From this amount, $2.0 million was credited back
to the customer’s account for use as payment of license fees for future orders to be placed with us. The
remaining portion of gross royalty revenue, or $4.6 million in fiscal 2001, was reported as net royalty revenue in
fiscal 2001.
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Cost of Revenues 2002 Inc / (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Dec) 2000
($ In Thousands) § 8,297 39% $ 5971 9% § 5,462

Engineering costs are allocated between cost of revenues and product development. Engineering efforts devoted
to developing products for specific customer projects are recognized as cost of revenues. The balance of
engineering costs, incurred for general development of our technology, is charged to product development.
Engineering costs generally are expensed as incurred.

Cost of revenues increased by 39% in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001. The absolute dollar increase in
cost of revenues of $2.3 million in fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001, was due to increased engineering
hours allocated to revenue-generating projects of $1.8 million and increased use of outside services of $521,000.
We expect that cost of revenues will continue to increase in absolute dollars.

Cost of revenues increased by 9% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. The absolute dollar increase in cost
of revenues of $509,000 in fiscal 2001, as compared to fiscal 2000, was due to increased engineering hours
allocated to revenue-generating projects of $894,000, partially offset by decreased use of external contractors of
$323,000 and decreased warranty expense of $62,000 in fiscal 2001.

Product Development Expenses 2002 Inc / (Dec) 2001 Inc/ (Bec) 2000
($ In Thousands) $11,869  (5%) $12,438 82% $ 6,837

Product development expenses decreased by 5% in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001. The absolute dollar
decrease in product development expenses of $569,000 in fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001, was due to
increased engineering hours allocated to revenue-generating projects of $1.8 million and decreased computer and
networking equipment maintenance and depreciation costs of $622,000, partially offset by an increase in
headcount and personnel expenses of $1.1 million, increased outside services of $254,000 and increased leasing
costs associated with the relocation of our principal offices of $456,000. We expect that product development
expenses will increase in absolute dollars.

Product development expenses increased by 82% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. The absolute dollar
increase in product development expenses of $5.6 million in fiscal 2001, as compared to fiscal 2000, was due to
an increase in headcount and personnel expenses of $5.1 million, increased leasing costs associated with the
relocation of our principal offices of $757,000, increased computer and networking equipment maintenance and
depreciation costs of $500,000 and increased legal costs of $133,000, partially offset by an increase in
engineering hours allocated to revenue-generating projects of $894,000. Headcount and personne] related costs
increased due to the acquisition of certain assets of Synopsys’ physical library business as well as additional
hiring in engineering. Facilities costs increased due to increased leasing costs associated with the relocation of
our principal offices and an increase in the proportion of engineering employees relative to other functional
groups. Computer and networking related costs increased as a result of increased software and hardware needed
to develop our products.

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
Sales and Marketing Expenses 2002 Inc/ (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Dec) 2000
($ In Thousands) $§ 8,782 35% $ 6,510 (7%) $ 6,999

Sales and marketing expenses include salaries, commissions, travel expenses and costs associated with trade
shows, advertising and other marketing efforts. Sales and marketing expenses increased by 35% in fiscal 2002 as
compared to fiscal 2001. The increase in absolute dollars in sales and marketing expenses of $2.3 million in
fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001, was attributable to an increase in personnel expenses of $2.4 million,
increased outside services of $119,000 and increased facility costs of $252,000, partially offset by decreased
marketing program expenses of $327,000 and decreased travel and miscellaneous expenses of $126,000. We
expect sales and marketing expenses to increase in absolute dollars in the future.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by 7% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. The decrease in sales
and marketing expenses of $489,000 in fiscal 2001, as compared to fiscal 2000, was attributable to decreased
headcount and personnel-related expenses of approximately $278,000, lower travel expenses of approximately
$397,000, partially offset by increased marketing programs and other expenses of approximately $186,000.
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Headcount and related costs and travel costs decreased due to a smaller sales force in fiscal 2001. Marketing
program expenses increased due to increased advertising and trade show costs.

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
General and Administrative Expenses 2002 Inc / (Dec) 2801 Ine / (Dec) 2000
($ In Thousands) $ 3,499 4% $ 3,371 45% $2,324

General and administrative expenses increased by 4% in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001. The increase in
general and administrative expenses of $128,000 in fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001, was due to increased
personnel related costs of $289,000, increased insurance and legal expenses of $560,000 and increased facility
and miscellaneous costs of $68,000, partially offset by the reduction of the bad debt expense of $712,000 and
decreased outside services of $77,000. We expect general and administrative expenses to grow in absolute
dollars in future periods.

General and administrative expenses increased by 45% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. The increase in
general and administrative expenses of $1.0 million in fiscal 2001, as compared to fiscal 2000, was due to higher
provision for doubtful accounts of $370,000, increased headcount and personnel-related expenses of
approximately $291,000, increased use of contractors of approximately $167,000, increased costs for legal,
accounting services and directors and officers insurance of approximately $162,000 and increased travel of
approximately $43,000. The increase in the provision for doubtful accounts was due to an increase in our past
due receivables.

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
Acquisition-Related Expenses 2002 Ine / (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Dec) 2000
($ In Thousands)
In-process research and development $§ —  (100%) $2441 N/A $§ —
Amortization of purchased intangible assets 1,967 33% 1,476 N/A —
Amortization of goodwill and acquired workforce —  (100%) 4,580 N/A $ —
Acquisition-related expenses $ 1,967 (77%)  $ 8,497 N/A 8 —

The amount expensed to in-process research and development was related to our acquisition of certain assets of
Synopsys’ physical library business in January 2001 and was expensed upon acquisition because technological
feasibility had not been established and no future alternative uses existed (see Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). The fair value of the existing purchased technology and patents, as well as the technology
under development, was determined using the income approach, which discounts expected future cash flows to
present value. The 30% discount rate used in the present value calculations was derived from a weighted-average
cost of capital analysis and venture capital surveys, adjusted upward to reflect additional risks inherent in the
particular technologies and the development life cycle. We consider the pricing model for products related to this
acquisition to be standard within the high-technology industry. However we do not expect to achieve a material
amount of expense reductions as a result of integrating the acquired in-process technology. Therefore, the
valuation assumptions do not include significant anticipated cost savings.

The development of these technologies remains a significant risk due to the remaining efforts to achieve
technical viability, rapidly changing customer markets, uncertain standards for new products, and significant
competitive threats from numerous companies. The nature of the efforts to develop these technologies into
commercially viable products consists principally of planning, designing, experimenting, and testing activities
necessary to determine that the technologies can meet market expectations, including functionality and technical
requirements. Failure to bring these products to market in a timely manner could result in a loss of market share
or a lost opportunity to capitalize in emerging markets, and could have a material adverse impact on our business
and operating results.

The assumptions primarily consist of an expected completion date for the in-process projects, estimated costs to
complete the projects, revenue and expense projections assuming the products have entered the market, and
discount rates based on the risks associated with the development life cycle of the in-process technology
acquired. Failure to achieve the expected levels of revenue and net income from these products will negatively
impact the return on investment expected at the time that the acquisitions were completed and may result in
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impairment charges. The increase in the amortization of purchased intangible assets was attributable to the
timing of the acquisition in fiscal 2001.

The decrease in the amortization of goodwill and acquired workforce was attributable to the adoption of SFAS
142 in fiscal 2002. As a result, we ceased amortization of goodwill on October 1, 2001.

We expect acquisition related expenses to increase in absolute dollars in future periods due to our proposed
acquisition of NurLogic.

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
Interest and Other (Expense) Income, net 2002 Inc / (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Dec) 2000
($ In Thousands) ($377) (131%)  $ 1226  (58%)  $ 2,945

Interest and other (expense) income decreased by 131% in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001. The decrease
of $1.6 million in fiscal 2002, as compared to fiscal 2001, reflected a lower rate of return on our investment
portfolio in 2002 combined with an increase of $1.2 million in the loss provision related to our unused leased
facility. Interest and other (expense) income decreased by 58% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. The
decrease of $1.7 million in fiscal 2001, as compared to fiscal 2000, reflected a lower rate of return on our
investment portfolio as well as a lower portfolio balance during fiscal 2001, combined with a loss provision of
$1.3 million related to our unused leased facility. The lower investment balance was a result of cash paid for our
acquisition of certain assets of the Synopsys physical library business.

Fiscal Percent Fiscal Percent Fiscal
Provision for Income Taxes 2002 In¢ / (Dec) 2001 Inc / (Bec) 2000
($ In Thousands) $ 340 (92%) $ 4,168 682% $ 333

The income tax provision was $340,000 in fiscal 2002, $4.2 million in fiscal 2001 and $533,000 in fiscal 2000.
The tax provision in fiscal 2002 was a result of the alternative minimum tax and foreign withholding tax. The tax
provision in fiscal 2001 was a result of a full valuation allowance provided against the deferred tax assets that
had been carried on our books. The valuation allowance was established due to uncertainty surrounding the
realization of the benefit of such assets. The tax provision in fiscal 2000 was due to the operating income in
fiscal 2000. The difference between the statutory and effective rates of income tax is due to the impact of state
taxes and tax-free interest income and tax credits.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations primarily from revenue from continuing operations from inception to September
30, 2002, the net proceeds of $27.1 million from our February 1998 initial public offering, the net proceeds of
$15.8 million from our April 1998 secondary offering and, to a lesser extent, the proceeds of approximately $7.7
million from the sale of preferred stock and a warrant prior to our initial public offering.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2002 of $8.3 million was primarily attributable to the net
income of $2.1 million, an increase in accounts payable of $689,000, an increase in deferred revenue of $2.9
million, an increase in other liabilities of $1.1 million and non-cash related charges of $4.6 million; partially
offset by an increase in contract receivables of $1.5 million, an increase in prepaid and other currents assets of
$800,000 and a decrease in accrued liabilities of $1.1 million. Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal
2001 of $2.7 million was primarily attributable to a decrease in contract receivables of $1.1 million, an increase
in deferred taxes of $4.1 million, an increase in accrued liabilities of $2.2 million, an increase in other liabilities
of $398,000 and non-cash charges of $11.8 million; partially offset by the net loss of $14.0 million, a decrease in
accounts payable of $601,000 and a decrease in deferred revenue of $2.2 million. Net cash provided by operating
activities in fiscal 2000 of $3.6 million was primarily attributable to the net income of $1.1 million, an increase
in deferred revenue of $945,000, an increase in accrued liabilities of $884,000 and non-cash charges of $4.4
million; offset by a decrease in accounts payable of $506,000 and a decrease in deferred taxes of $3.4 million.
We expect that cash provided by operating activities may fluctuate in future periods as a result of a number of
factors, including but not limited to fluctuations in our operating results, shipment linearity, accounts receivable
collections and the timing of tax and other payments.
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Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2002 of $13.8 million was attributable to an increase in purchases
of property and equipment of $1.5 million and a net increase in purchases of marketable securities of $12.3
million. Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2001 of $6.3 million was primarily attributable to an
increase in purchases of property and equipment of $1.9 million and the acquisition of certain assets of the
physical library business of Synopsys, net of cash acquired, of $14.5 million; partially offset by the net decrease
of marketable securities of $10.0 million. Net cash provided by investing activities in fiscal 2000 of $11.0
million was primarily attributable to a net decrease in marketable securities of $12.2 million; partially offset by
an increase in purchases of property and equipment of $1.4 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $3.1 million in fiscal 2002, $2.0 million in fiscal 2001 and $3.5
million in fiscal 2000. In all three fiscal years, financing activities consisted of proceeds from issuance of
common stock to employees upon the exercise of stock options or our employee stock purchase plan.

On October 21, 2002, we announced a definitive agreement to acquire NurLogic for a purchase price of
approximately $21.0 million consisting of $5.4 million in cash and the remaining balance in common stock. Our
acquisition of NurLogic is expected to result in a significant increase in our costs and expenses relating primarily
to the increased headcount and amortization of purchased intangible assets associated with the acquisition. This
acquisition will be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and is expected to close in the second
quarter of our fiscal 2003.

We intend to continue to invest heavily in the development of new products and enhancements to our existing
products. Qur future liquidity and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the costs
and timing of expansion of product development efforts and the success of these development efforts, the costs
and timing of expansion of sales and marketing activities and our international operations, the extent to which
our existing and new products gain market acceptance, the costs and timing of future acquisitions, if any,
competing technological and market developments, the costs involved in maintaining and enforcing patent
claims and other IP rights, the level and timing of license and royalty revenue, available borrowings under line of
credit arrangements, if any, and other factors. We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents and investment
balances and any cash generated from operations and from potential future debt financing arrangements will be
sufficient to meet our operating and capital requirements for at least the next 12 months. However, from time to
time, we may be required to raise additional funds through public or private financing, strategic relationships or
other arrangements. There can be no assurance that such funding, if needed, will be available on terms attractive
to us, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders, and debt financing,
if available, may involve restrictive covenants. Strategic arrangements, if necessary to raise additional funds,
may require us to relinquish our rights to certain of our technologies or products. Our failure to raise capital
when needed could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases on our facilities, investments in
special purpose entities or undisclosed borrowings or debt. Additionally, we have not entered into any derivative
contracts, nor do we have any synthetic leases. At September 30, 2002, we had no foreign currency contracts
outstanding.

The following table represents the future minimum annual lease payments of the Company as of September 30,
2002 (in thousands):

Fiscal 2003 $ 2,283
Fiscal 2004 2,426
Fiscal 2005 1,930
Fiscal 2006 2,007
Fiscal 2007 and thereafter 4,085

Total minimum annual lease payments $12,731

We rent our current office facility in Sunnyvale, California under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in
2008. Under the terms of the lease, we are responsible for a proportionate amount of taxes, insurance and
common area maintenance costs. We continue to lease our previous office facility in Sunnyvale under a
non-cancelable lease that expires in September 2004. We are actively seeking a sub-tenant for this building. As a
result, we have accrued a loss of $1.1 million for the anticipated loss on subleasing the facility, including the
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estimated commission expenses relating to the sublease. We also lease facilities for our sales and support offices
in Paris, France and Tokyo, Japan, which expire in 2002 and 2004, respectively. We recognize rent expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease period and have accrued for rent expense incurred, but not paid. Net rent
expense was $2.2 million in fiscal 2002, $783,000 in fiscal 2001 and $625,000 in fiscal 2000.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”),
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The objectives of SFAS 144 are to address
significant issues relating to the implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121
(“SFAS 1217), “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of,” and to develop a single accounting model, based on the framework established in SFAS 121, for
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, whether previously held and used or newly acquired. SFAS 144 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and, generally, its
provisions are to be applied prospectively. We do not believe the adoption of SFAS 144 will have a material
impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146”),
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This Statement addresses financial
accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and replaces Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit
an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs
associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. This Statement is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31,
2002, with early application encouraged. We do not believe the adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material
impact on our financial position and results of operations.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

Our business depends on continued demand for complex system-om-a-chip semiconductors amd the
electronic equipment that incorporate them

Our business is substantially dependent on the adoption of our technology by semiconductor manufacturers and
on an increasing demand for products requiring complex system-on-a-chip integrated circuits, such as portable
computing devices, cellular phones, consumer multimedia products, automotive electronics, personal computers
and workstations. A system-on-a-chip is a semiconductor that includes the computing, memory and
communications components that previously had been available only on separate chips. Our business is subject
to many risks beyond our control that influence the success of our customers including, among others,
competition faced by each customer in its particular industry, market acceptance of the customer’s products that
incorporate our technology, the engineering, sales and marketing capabilities of the customer and the financial
and other resources of the customer. Demand for our products may also be affected by mergers in the
semiconductor and related industries, which may reduce the aggregate level of purchases of our products and
services by the combined companies. If there is a retraction or growth falters in the semiconductor and related
industries, a reduced number of design starts, shifts in the types of integrated circuits manufactured, tightening of
customers’ operating budgets or consolidation among our customers, our business could suffer.

The semiconductor and electronics products industries are characterized by rapid technological change, frequent
introductions of new products, short product life cycles, fluctuations in manufacturing capacity and pricing and
gross margin pressures. Each of these industries is highly cyclical and has periodically experienced significant
downturns, often in connection with or in anticipation of decline in general economic conditions during which
the number of new semiconductor design projects often decreases. Revenue generated from licensing depends in
large part on the rate at which semiconductor manufacturers adopt new product generations, which, in turn, is
affected by the level of demand for semiconductors. Revenue generated from royalties depends on production
and sale of integrated circuits or wafers that incorporate our technology. 1f the semiconductor and electronics
products industries experience a downturn, then our business could suffer.
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The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature and a general economic downturn in the United States or
abroad may reduce osur revenue and harm our business

The primary customers for our IP components are semiconductor design and manufacturing companies. Any
significant downturn in our customers’ markets, or domestic and global conditions which result in the reduction
of research and development budgets or the delay of software purchases by our customers would likely result in
a decline in demand for our IP components and services and could harm our business. In addition, the markets
for semiconductor products are cyclical. For example, in previous years certain Asian countries have
experienced significant economic difficulties, including currency devaluation and instability, business failures
and a depressed business environment. These difficulties have coincided with a significant downturn in the
semiconductor market, resulting in reduced budgets for chip design tools, which, in turn, has negatively
impacted us.

The semiconductor industry suffered a sharp decline in orders and revenue in 2001 and this weakness has
continued throughout 2002. Many semiconductor manufacturers and vendors of products incorporating
semiconductors have announced earnings shortfalls and employee layoffs. We believe these conditions have
negatively affected the rate of growth of our revenue, and may negatively affect our business in the future if
these conditions persist. The outlook for the electronics industry is uncertain and it is very difficult to predict
how long the current downturn will last.

QOur guarterly operating results may fluctuate, which could cause our stock price to decline

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past as a result of a number of factors including:

° the relatively large size and small number of customer orders we receive during a given period;

o the timing of customer orders, including the capital budgeting and purchasing cycles of our
customers;

o the size and timing of production by our customers of chips containing our IP components;

° the gain or loss by us of a large semiconductor manufacturing customer or the gain or loss by such

customer of a major order of chips containing our IP components;

° delays in the design process due to changes by a customer to its order after it is placed;

o our progress on contracts that are billed and recognized to revenue on a percentage-of-completion
basis, which represent a substantial majority of our contracts and have completion periods of six to
nine months;

o the accuracy of our estimates for project completion costs and costs incurred to date, which
estimates involve significant management judgment and discretion;

° the length of our sales cycle;

° our ability to develop, introduce and market new products and product enhancements;

° the timing of our new product announcements and introductions and those of our competitors;

° market acceptance of our products; and

° fluctuations in the demand for semiconductors and end user products that incorporate
semiconductors.

Our future revenue may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and on an annual basis as a result of these and other
factors. Our expense levels are based in part on our expectations regarding future revenue. If revenue is below
our expectations in any quarter and we are not able to adjust spending in a timely manner, the negative effect of
such shortfall may be increased. We intend to continue our investment in product development as well as in
product promotion, licensing and support programs in an effort to maximize the growth of future royalties.
Accordingly, it is likely that in some future quarters our operating results will be below the expectations of
public market analysts and investors, which could cause our stock price to decline, perhaps substantially.
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We have incurred operating losses in recent periods and may be unable to maintain profitability

Although we were profitable in fiscal 2002 as a whole, we incurred net operating losses in the first six months of
fiscal 2002, in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 1999. If our revenue in future periods increases more slowly than we
expect, or not at all, we may not maintain profitability. In addition, most of our operating expenses are fixed in
the short term, so any shortfall in anticipated revenue in a given period could significantly reduce our operating
results below expectations. We expect to continue to incur significant expenses in connection with funding for
product development, operational and administrative activities and expansion of our sales and marketing efforts.
As a result, we will need to increase revenue to maintain profitability. We may be unable to sustain or increase
profitability on a quarterly or annual basis. If we fail to maintain profitability, our business and financial
condition would suffer, we could lose the benefit of tax credits and other deferred tax assets and our stock price
could decline.

We have relied and expect to continue to rely on royaities as a key component of our business model and if
we fail to realize expected royalties our business will suffer

Royalty payments are calculated based on per unit sales by our customers of integrated circuits or wafers
containing our IP components. We believe that our long-term success is substantially dependent on future
royalties.

We face risks inherent in a royalty based business model, such as the rate of incorporation of our IP components
into semiconductor designs, the rate of adoption of our IP components by semiconductor manufacturers, and the
demand for products incorporating such integrated circuits. Additionally, our ability to forecast and realize
royalty revenue is limited by factors that are beyond our control. Such factors include the timing of the
manufacture of royalty-bearing integrated circuits, the price charged by semiconductor manufacturers to their
customers for royalty-bearing integrated circuits, and the quantity of royalty-bearing integrated circuits ordered
and actually manufactured. Even if our IP components are used in a product that achieves commercial success,
the royalty rate that we negotiate with our customers varies, and in certain cases, with respect to specific process
geometries, or product generations, declines over time. Accordingly, on a period-to-period basis, net royalty
revenue as a percentage of our total revenues may vary significantly. Net royalty revenue as a percentage of our
total revenues was 21% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, 26% in the third quarter, 31% in the second quarter,
and 26% in the first quarter.

There is significant delay and uncertainty between the delivery of our IP components and the generation of
royalty revenue. In addition to the factors described above, this delay and uncertainty is due to the delivery and
application of our products early in the integrated circuit design process and delays in our recognition of royalty
revenue. We recognize royalty revenue in the quarter in which we receive a royalty report from a customer,
provided that other conditions to revenue recognition have been satisfied. As a result, our recognition of royalty
revenue typically lags behind the quarter in which the related chip is sold by our customer by at least one quarter.
We cannot be certain that our business strategy will be successful in expanding the number of royalty bearing
contracts with customers, nor can we be certain that we will receive significant royalty revenue in the future.

We also face risks relating to the accuracy and completeness of the royalty collection process. Our ability to
generate royalty revenue depends, in part, on our ability to negotiate, structure, monitor and enforce agreements
for the determination and payment of royalties. We have only limited experience and systems in place to conduct
reviews of the accuracy of the royalty reports we receive from our licensees. We have the right to audit the
records of semiconductor manufacturers who license our products to help ensure the integrity of their royalty
reporting systems; however, such audits may only be conducted periodically and may be at our expense. We
cannot be certain that the costs incurred by us to improve our systems and processes and in conducting these
audits will not exceed the royalties that result from these efforts.

If the market for third party IP compenents does not expand, our business may suffer

Our ability to achieve sustained revenue growth and profitability in the future will depend on the continued
development of the market for third party IP components and, to a large extent, on the demand for
system-on-a-chip integrated circuits. System-on-a-chip integrated circuits are characterized by rapid
technological change and competition from an increasing number of alternate design strategies such as
combining multiple chips to create a system-on-package. We cannot be certain that the market for third party IP
components and system-on-a-chip integrated circuits will continue to develop or grow at a rate sufficient to
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support our business. If either of these markets fails to grow or develops slower than expected, then our business
may suffer. A significant majority of our existing and potential customers currently rely on components
developed internally and/or by other vendors. Our future growth, if any, is dependent on the adoption of, and
" increased reliance on, third party design components by both existing and potential customers.

We continue te experience intemse competition from other IP component providers, semiconductor
manufacturers and electronic design automation companies, and this competition could negatively affect
our business and our revenue

Our strategy of targeting semiconductor manufacturers and integrated circuit design companies that participate
in, or may enter, the system-on-a-chip market requires us to compete in intensely competitive markets. We face
significant competition from third party IP component providers, such as DOLPHIN Integration SA, Faraday
Technology Corporation, LEDA Systems, Inc., VeriSilicon Microelectronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Virage Logic
Corporation and Virtual Silicon Technology, Inc., and from the internal design groups of semiconductor
manufacturers, such as TSMC. In addition, we face competition from small consulting firms and design
companies that operate in the library segment of the market and offer a limited selection of specialized [P
components.

We face significant competition from the internal design groups of semiconductor manufacturers that have
expanded their manufacturing capabilities and portfolio of IP components to participate in the system-on-a-chip
market. Semiconductor manufacturers that license our products have historically had their own internal IP
component design groups. These design groups continue to compete with us for access to the parent’s IP
component requisitions and, in some cases, compete with us to supply IP components to third parties on a
merchant basis. IP components developed by internal design groups are designed to utilize the qualities of their
own manufacturing process, and may therefore benefit from certain capacity, informational, cost and technical
advantages. If internal design groups expand their product offerings to compete directly with our products or
actively seek to participate as vendors in the IP component market, then our revenue and operating results could
be negatively affected.

TSMC, our largest customer, has announced that it intends to more aggressively supply intemnally developed IP
components for its manufacturing processes to integrated circuit designers through multiple library and EDA
tool partners, including our competitors. TSMC has substantially greater financial, manufacturing and other
resources, name recognition and market presence than us and the internal design group at TSMC has greater
access to technical information about TSMC’s manufacturing processes. Distribution partners selected by TSMC
may have greater resources, name recognition and distribution networks than us. If TSMC is successful in
supplying IP components to third parties either directly or through distribution arrangements with other
companies, then our revenue and operating results could be negatively affected.

We may also face competition from vendors such as Cadence, Mentor Graphics and Synopsys, which supply
EDA software tools. IP component offerings from leading EDA companies may benefit from greater integration
into EDA tool design flows and may also benefit from distribution through more established and widely-used
distribution networks. We cannot be certain that we will be able to compete successfully against such EDA
companies.

In connection with our acquisition of certain assets of the physical library business of Synopsys in January 2001,
Synopsys agreed that it would not engage in the development, sale, marketing or support of certain IP
components for a period of two years commencing in January 2001. If, upon termination of this restriction,
Synopsys elects to engage in the development, sale, marketing or support of IP components that compete with
our IP components, our revenue and operating results could be negatively affected. Synopsys recently acquired
Avant! Corporation, including its physical library business, which competes against us. We believe that the
January 2001 agreements between us and Synopsys require Synopsys to suspend operations of such business,
other than maintenance and support of existing contracts, until January 2003 and exercise commercially
reasonable efforts to sell such business to a third party, subject to our right of first refusal. If Synopsys sells the
Avant! physical library business to a third party or elects to operate such business itself, then our revenue and
operating results could be negatively affected.

We expect competition to increase in the future from existing competitors and from new market entrants with
products that may be less expensive than ours or that may provide better performance or additional features not
currently provided by our products. Many of our current and potential competitors have substantially greater
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financial, technical, manufacturing, marketing, distribution and other resources, greater name recognition and
market presence, longer operating histories, lower cost structures and larger customer bases than us. As a result,
they may be able to adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements.
In addition, some of our principal competitors maintain their own design tools and IP component libraries which
allow them to offer a single vendor solution.

Our ability to compete successfully in the market for IP components will depend upon numerous factors, many
of which are beyond our control including, but not limited to:

° our success in designing new products;

° our ability to implement new designs at smaller process geometries;

° access to adequate EDA tools {many of which are licensed from our current or potential
competitors);

° access to adequate technical information from semiconductor manufacturers (many of which are
actual or potential competitors);

o the price, quality and timing of our new product introductions and those of our competitors;

o the emergence of new IP component interchangeability standards;

° the widespread licensing of 1P components by semiconductor manufacturers or their design groups

to third party manufacturers;

o our ability to protect our IP;

° market acceptance of our IP components;

° success of competitive products; and

° continued market acceptance of products using system-on-a-chip integrated circuits and industry

and general economic conditions. '
We cannot be certain that we will be able to compete successfully in the market for third party IP components.

If we fail to enhance our 1P component libraries and develop and introduce new products on a timely
basis, we may not be able to address the needs of our custemers, our technology may become obsclete and
our results of operations may be harmed

Our customers compete in the semiconductor industry, which is subject to rapid technological change, frequent
introductions of new products, short product life cycles, changes in customer demands and requirements and
evolving industry standards. The development of new manufacturing processes, the introduction of products
embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards can render existing products obsolete
and unmarketable. Accordingly, our future success will depend on our ability to continue to enhance our existing
products and to develop and introduce new products that satisfy increasingly sophisticated customer
requirements and that keep pace with new product introductions, emerging manufacturing process technologies
and other technological developments in the semiconductor industry. If we fail to anticipate or adequately
respond to changes in manufacturing processes or customer requirements, or if we experience significant delays
in product development, our business and operating results may be negatively affected. We cannot be certain that
we will avoid difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful introduction, development and sale of new or
enhanced products or that such new or enhanced products will achieve market acceptance. If we do not satisfy
our delivery commitments, then we could also be exposed to litigation or claims from our customers. Any such
claim could have a material negative effect on our business, which could cause our stock price to decline.

From time to time, we have experienced delays in the progress of certain projects, and we may continue to
experience such delays in the future. Any delay or failure to achieve progress could result in damage to customer
relationships and our reputation, underutilization of engineering resources, delay in the market acceptance of our
products and a decline in revenue, any of which could negatively affect our business.
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Our sales cycle is unpredictable and may be mere than twelve months, so we may fail to adequately adjust
our resgurces and expenses to anticipated or actual demand in any given period or meet market
expectations

The license of our products typically involves a significant commitment of capital by the customer and a
purchase will often be timed to coincide with a customer’s migration to a new manufacturing process. Potential
customers generally commit significant resources to an evaluation of available IP or IP solutions and require that
we expend substantial time, effort and resources to educate them about the value of our products. Despite these
efforts, potential customers may select an alternate solution or delay or forego a license of our products. As a
result, the sales cycle for our products is long, typically ranging from six to nine months. Our ability to forecast
the timing and scope of specific sales is limited. '

Once we receive and accept an order for a customized product from a customer, we must commit significant
resources to customizing our products for the customer’s manufacturing process. We generate a substantial
majority of our license revenue from customized products. This customization is complex and time consuming
and is subject to a number of risks over which we have little or no control. These risks include the customer’s
alterations of its manufacturing process or the timing of its migration to a new process. Typically, this
customization, once started, takes from six to nine months to complete. If we fail to adequately adjust our
resources and expenses to meet actual demand, our business may suffer. If anticipated orders fail to materialize,
we may be unable to reduce our resources and expenses in time and our operating results could suffer. In
addition, where customer orders exceed our anticipated demand, we may be unable to deliver customized
products in time to meet our customer’s requirements. Any such delays in product customization and delivery,
whether due to capacity constraints or otherwise, give rise to the risk of cancellation or alteration of customer
orders. In the last half of fiscal 2002 and the first quarter of fiscal 2003 we experienced an increase in customer
orders that has placed a strain on our product customization resources and increased the time it takes for us to
deliver customized products to our customers. While we have increased and continue to increase our engineering
capacity, we cannot be certain that such capacity will match demand in future periods. Contracts for customized
products are billed and recognized to revenue on a percentage-of-completion basis. Our revenue recognition and
cost management practices are based on estimates for project completion costs and costs incurred to date.
Accordingly, if there are delays in product customization, our operating results could suffer.

Due to the significant dollar amounts represented by a single customer order, the timing of the receipt of an order
can have a significant impact on our revenue for a particular period. Because our revenue is concentrated among
a small number of customers, a decline or a delay in the recognition of revenue from one customer in a period
may cause our operating results in such period to be negatively affected. The unpredictability of our sales cycle
makes it difficult to plan our expenses and forecast our results of operations for any given period. If we do not
correctly predict the timing of our customers’ purchases, then the amount of revenue we recognize in a given
quarter could be negatively impacted, which could harm our operating results. If we fail to obtain new orders
from customers or fail to collect outstanding accounts receivable our business may be negatively affected.

If we were to experience a delay in our orders, it could harm our ability to meet our forecasts or investors’
expectations for a given quarter and ultimately result in the decrease of our stock price. Further, if our sales cycle
unexpectedly lengthens in general, it would negatively affect the timing of our revenue recognition, which would
cause us to fail to meet market expectations and our stock price to suffer.

We face risks from sales to foreign customers and foreign operations, which could reduce our operating
results and harm our financial condition

Historically, a large portion of our total revenues has been derived from customers located outside of the United
States. International revenue as a percentage of our total revenues was approximately 75% in fiscal 2002, 70% in
fiscal 2001 and 86% in fiscal 2000. Revenue from Taiwan as a percentage of our total revenues was
approximately 44% in fiscal 2002, 34% in fiscal 2001 and 43% in fiscal 2000. We anticipate that international
revenue will remain a substantial portion of our total revenues in the future. To date, all of the revenue from
international customers has been denominated in U.S. dollars. If our competitors denominate their sales in a
currency that becomes relatively inexpensive in comparison to the U.S. dollar, then we may experience fewer
orders from international customers whose business is based primarily on the less expensive currency. We are
facing increased pressure from our customers in Europe to denominate our sales to such customers in the
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European Union Euro. In addition, present or future dislocations with respect to international financial markets
may materially harm our business.

We intend to expand our sales, marketing and design activities in Asia and Europe. We are currently establishing
an engineering services and support facility in Bangalore, India. International expansion will result in increased
costs and may not be successful, which could harm our business. OQur expansion of international activity and
dependence on customers outside the United States involves a number of risks including:

° the impact of possible recessions in economies outside the United States;

e political and economic instability, including such instability arising from relations between Taiwan and
the Peoples Republic of China;

e exchange rate fluctuations;

° longer accounts receivable collection periods and greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection;

e compliance with, and unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, which could prevent us from
delivering our products into markets outside the United States;

o reduced or limited protection for IP rights;

e significant difficulties in enforcement of contractual rights, such as royalty rights, [P rights, such as
infringement claims, and other legal rights;

o export license requirements;

® difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations; and

° tariffs and other trade barriers and potentially adverse tax consequences.

If we are unable to sustain or increase revenue derived from international customers or minimize the foregoing
risks, our business may be materially and negatively affected, which could cause our stock price to decline.

We have relied and expect to continue to rely on license revenue for a substantial pertion of our revenue,
and a decline in sales of licenses could cause our income to decline

We derive a substantial majority of our revenue from license fees, including support and maintenance fees,
associated with the sale of our products. License fees accounted for 74% of total revenues in fiscal 2002, 82% in
fiscal 2001 and 84% in fiscal 2000. We expect that license revenue will continue to account for a substantial
portion of our total revenues for the foreseeable future. If license revenue were to decline, our business would
suffer in the short term, and our royalty revenue may decline in the long term as fewer semiconductors
incorporate our products. Our future license revenue will depend in part on the successful development,
introduction and customer acceptance of new products.

Because we rely on a refatively small number of customers for a large portion of our revenue, our revenue
could decline if our existing customers do not continue to purchase and use our products

We have been dependent on a relatively small number of customers for a large portion of our total revenues,
although the customers comprising this group have changed from time to time. In fiscal 2002, TSMC accounted
for 39% of total revenues. In fiscal 2001, TSMC accounted for 26% of total revenues and Synopsys accounted
for 12% of total revenues. In fiscal 2000, TSMC accounted for 35% of total revenues, Sharp accounted for 12%
of total revenues and NEC accounted for 10% of total revenues. We anticipate that our revenue will continue to
depend on a limited number of major customers for the foreseeable future. The companies considered to be our
major customers and the percentage of revenue represented by each major customer may vary from period to
period depending on the addition of new contracts and the number of designs produced that utilize our products.

None of our customers have a written agreement with us that obligates them to license future generations of
products or new products from us, and we cannot be certain that any customer will license I[P components from
us in the future. In addition, we cannot be certain that any of our customers will produce products incorporating
our technology or that, if such production occurs, they will generate significant royalty revenue. If one or more
of our major customers stops licensing our products, reduces their orders, fails to pay license or royalty fees due
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or does not produce products containing our [P components, then our operating results could be materially and
negatively affected.

TSMC, our largest customer, has announced that it intends to more aggressively supply internally developed IP
components for its manufacturing processes to integrated circuit designers through multiple library and EDA
tool partners, including our competitors. TSMC has substantially greater financial, manufacturing and other
resources, name recognition and market presence than us and the internal design group at TSMC has greater
access to technical information about TSMC’s manufacturing processes. Distribution partners selected by TSMC
may have greater resources, name recognition and distribution networks than us. If TSMC is successful in
supplying IP components to third parties either directly or through distribution arrangements with other
companies, then our revenue and operating results could be negatively affected.

We face numerous risks in successfully obtaining orders from customers on terms consistent with our business
model, including, among others, the lengthy and expensive process of building a relationship with a potential
customer before reaching an agreement with such party to license our products; persuading large semiconductor
manufacturers to work with, to rely for critical technology on, and to disclose proprietary information to a
smaller company, such as ours, and persuading potential customers to bear certain development costs associated
with development of customized components. There are a relatively limited number of semiconductor
manufacturers to which we can license our technology in a manner consistent with our business model and we
cannot be certain that such manufacturers will rely on merchant IP components or adopt our products.

Ef we lose any of our key personnel or are unable to attract, train and retazin qualified perscnnel, our
ability to manage our business and continue our growth would be negatively impacted

Our success depends in large part on the continued contributions of our key management, engineering, sales and
marketing personnel, many of whom are highly skilled and would be difficult to replace. None of our senior
management, key technical personnel or key sales personnel is bound by a written employment contract to
remain with us for a specified period. In addition, we do not currently maintain key man life insurance covering
our key personnel. Our success also depends on our ability to attract, train and retain highly skilled managerial,
engineering, sales, marketing and finance personnel and on the abilities of new personnel to function effectively,
both individually and as a group. If we are unable to effectively integrate and utilize newly hired engineering,
management or sales personnel, the execution of our business strategy and our ability to react to changing
market conditions may be impeded and our business could suffer. Competition for personnel is intense, and we
cannot be certain that we will be successful in attracting and retaining effective personnel. If we lose the services
of any key personnel, are unable to attract or retain qualified personnel in the future or experience delays in the
integration of new personnel in the United States and abroad, our business and operations may suffer.

QOur historical growth and acquisitions have placed and future acquisitions might place a significant strain
on our management systems and resources and we may be unable to effectively control our costs and
implement our business strategies as a resuft

Our ability to license our products and manage our business successfully in a rapidly evolving market requires an
effective planning and management process. Our historical growth, international expansion, acquisition of
certain assets and personnel from Synopsys in January 2001 and expected acquisition of NurLogic have placed,
and are expected to continue to place, a significant strain on our managerial, operational and financial resources.
We are currently in the process of establishing a design facility in India and we plan to open offices in China.
The number of our employees or full-time equivalents has increased from 163 on September 30, 2001 to 181 on
September 30, 2002. Furthermore, approximately 99 employees are expected to join us upon completion of our
acquisition of NurLogic and establishment of our new office in Bangalore, India. Despite the time and resources
invested in the acquisition of NurLogic, there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be consummated. Qur
international expansion is expected to result in increased costs associated with the commencement of operations.
If our international operations are unsuccessful, our business and results of operations would be negatively
affected.

Cur customers rely heavily on our technological expertise in designing, testing and manufacturing products
incorporating our IP components. Relationships with new customers generally require significant engineering
support. As a result, any increase in the demand for our products will increase the strain on our personnel,
particularly our engineers. Our financial and management controls, reporting systems and procedures are also
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limited. Our future growth, if any, will depend on our ability to continue to implement and improve operational,
financial and management information and control systems on a timely basis. If we fail to do so, our business
could be harmed. We cannot be certain that our systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support our
operations or that our management will be able to achieve the rapid execution necessary to implement our

business plan. We also cannot be sure that our revenue will continue to grow at a sufficient rate to absorb the
costs associated with our increased personnel.

If we are not able to effectﬁveﬂy integrate and develop the operations of Nurlogic or future acquisitions,
our business may sufffer

Our acquisition of NurLogic is expected to close, subject to customary closing conditions, in January 2003.
Upon the closing of this transaction, we intend to integrate the workforce and operations of NurLogic into our
organizational structure and work towards the effective utilization of the additional workforce. We face various
risks as a result of this planned acquisition including, but not limited to, difficulty in satisfying the conditions to
closing this acquisition, retaining and motivating NurLogic’s employees, retaining and developing NurLogic’s
customers, combining the technology, operations and work force of NurLogic and realizing the potential
financial or strategic benefits of the acquisition; substantial unanticipated integration costs; and disruption of our
ongoing business. If we are not able to successfully develop and commercially exploit NurLogic’s business, our
business may be negatively affected in future periods, which may cause our stock price to decline. In addition, if
the value of intangible assets acquired becomes impaired, we may be required to write down the value of such
assets, which would negatively affect our financial results. If our efforts to refocus NurLogic’s business and
integrate it with our existing business are not successful, our future revenue and operating results could be
negatively affected, which could cause our stock price to decline.

We may continue to make investments in complementary companies, products or technologies. If we buy a
company or a division of a company, we may experience difficulty assimilating that company or division’s
personnel and operations, which could negatively affect our operating results. In addition, the key personnel of
the acquired company may decide not to work for us. Furthermore, we may have to incur debt or issue equity
securities as we have in past acquisitions to pay for any future acquisition, the issuance of which would involve
restrictive covenants or be dilutive to our existing stockholders.

Our expected acquisitien ef NurLogic will make planning and predicting our future growth rates and
operating results more difficult

Our expected acquisition of NurLogic may reduce our revenue growth rate and make prediction of our future
revenue, costs and expenses and operating results more difficult. We expect the strategic and operational
integration of the NurLogic business to make prediction of our future revenue, costs and expenses and operating
results more difficult because our results of operations in future periods will reflect an expanded workforce and
product development effort and changed customer base. Due to the expected acquisition, we may not be able to
accurately predict:

o how the combined business will evolve;

° the possible impairment of relationships with employees and customers as a result of the integration
of the combined businesses;

° the impairment of goodwill resulting from the acquisition; and

e the effect of new accounting standards or policy changes directed by the Financial Accounting

Standard Board or other regulatory body on future operating results.

We are in the process of establishing our first remote engineering sites which, if not structured and
managed effectively, could cause our product development efforts and our overall business to suffer

We are currently in the process of establishing an engineering services and support office in Bangalore, India. In
addition, subject to the closing of our proposed acquisition of NurLogic, we expect to have engineering services
performed in San Diego, California. We have no prior experience in establishing or operating engineering
centers outside of our headquarters in Sunnyvale, California. Our expansion of engineering operations to
remotely situated offices presents a number of risks including increased difficulty in coordinating our
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engineering efforts, increased costs associated with establishing remote offices, obtaining required equipment
and tools and training new personnel, increased communications and travel costs, and potential delays in our
engineering efforts. ' ' :

If we are not able to preserve the value of the IP included in our products, our business will suffer

We rely primarily on a combination of nondisclosure agreements and other contractual provisions and patent,
trademark, trade secret and copyright law to protect our proprietary rights. If we fail to enforce our patents,
trademarks or copyrights or to protect our trade secrets, our business could suffer, which could cause our stock
price to decline: We cannot be certain that our IP rights can be successfully asserted in the future or will not be
invalidated, circumvented or challenged.

In certain instances, we have elected to rely on trade secret law rather than patent law to protect our proprietary
technology. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We protect our proprietary technology and processes,
in part, through confidentiality agreements with our employees and customers. We cannot be certain that these
contracts have not and will not be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach, or that our trade
secrets will not otherwise become known or be independently discovered by competitors.

Effective [P protection may be unavailable or limited in certain foreign jurisdictions. As a result, we may
experience difficulty protecting our IP from misuse or infringement by others in foreign countries. The risks
associated with protection of our IP in foreign countries are likely to increase as we expand our international
operations.

An infringement claim or a significant damage award would adversely impact our operating results

Substantial litigation and threats of litigation regarding IP rights exist in our industry. From time to time, third
parties, including our competitors, may assert patent, copyright and other IP rights to technologies that are
important to our business. We cannot be certain that we would ultimately prevail in any such dispute or be able
to license any valid and infringed patents from third parties on commercially reasonable terms. Any infringement
claim brought against us, regardless of the duration, outcome or size of damage award, could:

. result in substantial cost to us;

. divert our management’s attention and resources;

. be time consuming to defend;

® result in substantial damage awards;

. cause product shipment delays; or

. require us to seek to enter into royalty or other licensing agreements.

Any infringement claim or other litigation against or by us could have a material negative affect on our business,
which could cause our stock price to decline.

In any potential dispute involving our IP, our customers and strategic partners could also become the target of
litigation. This could trigger our technical support and indemnification obligations in our license agreements,
which could result in substantial expense to us. In addition to the time and expense required for us to supply such
support or indemnification to our customers and strategic partners, any such litigation could severely disrupt or
shut down the business of our customers and strategic partners, which in turn would hurt our relations with our
customers and strategic partners and cause licenses for our products to decrease.

Defects in our proprietary technologies and IP components could decrease cur revenue and our
competitive market share

If the IP components we provide to a customer contain defects that increase our customer’s cost of goods sold
and time to market, these defects could significantly decrease the market acceptance of our IP components. Any
actual or perceived defects with our products may also hinder our ability to attract or retain industry partners or
customers, leading to a decrease in our revenue. These defects are frequently found during the period following
introduction of new proprietary technologies or enhancements to existing proprietary technologies. Our IP
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components may contain errors not discovered until after customer utilization of the IP components provided by
us. If our products contain errors or defects, it could require us to expend significant resources to alleviate these
problems, which could result in the diversion of technical and other resources from our other development
efforts.

QOur future capital needs may require that we seek additional debt or equity funding which, if not
available, could cause our business to suffer

We intend to continue to invest heavily in the development of new products and enhancements to our existing
products. Our future liquidity and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including:

° the costs and timing of expansion of product development efforts and the success of these
development efforts;

° the costs and timing of expansion of sales and marketing activities;

© the costs and timing of expansion of our international operations;

= the extent to which our existing and new products gain market acceptance;

° the costs and timing of future acquisitions, if any;

o competing technological and market developments;

e the costs involved in maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other IP rights;

o the level and timing of license and royalty revenue; and

e available borrowings under line of credit arrangements and other factors,

From time to time, we may be required to raise additional funds through public or private financing, strategic
relationships or other arrangements. We cannot be certain that such funding, if needed, will be available on
attractive terms, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders, and debt
financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants. Strategic arrangements, if necessary to raise additional
funds, may require us to relinquish our rights to certain of our technologies or products. If we fail to raise capital
when needed, our business will be negatively affected, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Semiconductor fabrication facilities are subject to risk of natural disasters, which, if they were to secur,
could harm our revenue

Semiconductor fabrication facilities have in the past experienced major reductions in foundry capacity due to
earthquakes in Taiwan, Japan and California. For example, in 1999 Taiwan experienced several earthquakes
which impacted foundries due to power outages, physical damage and employee dislocation. The royalty
component of our revenue is directly related to the manufacture and sale of semiconductors containing our IP
components, and, as a result, our business could suffer if a major customer’s manufacturing capacity was
adversely affected by a natural disaster such as an earthquake, fire, tornado or flood.

Our stock will likely be subject to substantial price and volume fluctuations due to a number of factors,
many of which will be beyond our control, and theose fluctuations may prevent our stockholders from
reselling our common stock at a profit

The trading price of our common stock has in the past been and could in the future be subject to significant
fluctuations in response to:

° quarterly variations in our results of operations;

e announcements regarding our product developments;

° announcements of technological innovations or new products by us, our customers or competitors;
° announcements of competitive product introductions by our competitors or our customers;

° release of reports by securities analysts;
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° sales or the perception in the market of possible sales of a large number of shares of our common
stock by our directors, officers, employees or principal stockholders;

o changes in security analysts’ recommendations; and
® developments or disputes concerning patents or proprietary rights or other events.

If our revenue and results of operations are below the expectations of public market securities analysts or
investors, then significant fluctuations in the market price of our common stock could occur. In addition, the
securities markets have, from time to time, experienced significant price and volume fluctuations, which have
particularly affected the market prices for high technology companies and which often are unrelated and
disproportionate to the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations, as well
as general economic, political and market conditions, may negatively affect the market price of our common
stock. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of @ company’s stock, securities class action
litigation has occurred against that company. Such litigation could result in substantial costs and would at a
minimum divert management’s attention and resources, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, which could further reduce our stock price. Any adverse decision in such litigation could also subject
us to significant liabilities.

Qur charter documents, Delaware law and our stockholder rights plan contain provisions that may inhibit
potential acquisition bids, which may adversely affect the market price of sur commen stock, discourage
merger offers or prevent changes in our management

Our board of directors has the authority to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of such shares without any further vote or
action by our stockholders. If we issue any of these shares of preferred stock in the future, the rights of holders of
our common stock may be negatively affected. If we issue preferred stock, a change of control of our company
could be delayed, deferred or prevented. We have no current pians to issue shares of preferred stock.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law restricts certain business combinations with any
“Interested stockholder” as defined by that statute. In addition, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws
contain certain other provisions that may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control.
These provisions include:

o cumulative voting for the election of directors;
° the elimination of actions by written consent of stockholders; and
° the establishment of an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals and director

nominations to be acted upon at annual meetings of the stockholders.

On December 12, 2001, our board of directors adopted a stockholder rights plan. Under this plan, we issued a
dividend of one right for each share of our common stock. Each right initially entitles stockholders to purchase a
fractional share of our preferred stock for $115. However, the rights are not immediately exercisable. If a person
or group acquires, or announces a tender or exchange offer that would result in the acquisition of a certain
percentage of our common stock, then, unless the rights are redeemed by us for $0.001 per right, the rights will
become exercisable by all rights holders, except the acquiring person or group, for shares of our preferred stock
or of the third party acquirer having a value of twice the right’s then-current exercise price.

These provisions are designed to encourage potential acquirors to negotiate with our board of directors and give
our board of directors an opportunity to consider various alternatives to increase stockholder value. These
provisions are also intended to discourage certain tactics that may be used in proxy contests. However, the
potential issuance of preferred stock, our charter and bylaw provisions, the restrictions in Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law and our stockholder rights plan could discourage potential acquisition
proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control, which may adversely affect the market price of our
stock. Such provisions and plans may also have the effect of preventing changes in our management.
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Future changes in accounting standards, specifically changes affecting methods of revenue recognition,
could cause adverse unexpected revenue fluctuations

Future changes in accounting standards including those affecting revenue recognition, could require us to change
our accounting policies. If a change in accounting standards caused us to defer of revenue recognized in current
periods to subsequent periods or accelerate recognition of deferred revenue to current periods, we may not meet
securities analysts and investors’ expectations. Any such shortfalls could have an adverse impact on our stock
price.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and changes in the market values of our marketable
securities. Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our marketable securities.
We have not used derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio. We invest our excess cash in debt
instruments of high-quality corporate issuers and the U.S. Government. Our investment policy limits the amount
of credit exposure to any one issuer. As stated in our policy, we are averse to principal loss and seek to preserve
our invested funds by limiting default risk, market risk and reinvestment risk. We mitigate default risk by
investing in high credit quality securities and by positioning our portfolio to respond appropriately to a
significant reduction in a credit rating of any investment issuer or guarantor. The portfolio includes only
marketable securities with active secondary or resale markets to ensure portfolio liquidity.

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities in both fixed and floating rate interest-earning instruments
carry a degree of interest rate risk. Fixed rate securities may have their fair market value adversely impacted due
to rising interest rates, while floating rate securities may produce less income than expected if interest rates fall.
Due in part to these factors, our future interest income may fall short of expectations due to changes in interest
rates or we may suffer losses in principal if forced to sell securities that have declined in market value due to
changes in interest rates.

The table below presents the carrying value and related weighted average interest rates for our cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities. The carrying values approximate fair values at September 30, 2002 and
2001. All marketable securities mature in one year or less.

Carrying Average Rate Carrying Average Rate
Value at of Return at Value at of Return at
September 38, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2002 2002 2001 2001
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities: (In Thousands) (Annualized) (En Thousands) (Annualized)
Cash and cash equivalents — variable rate $ 9,873 0.6% $ 3,708 3.2%
Money market funds — variable rate 299 1.4% 121 3.2%
Cash and cash equivalents — fixed rate 18,987 1.8% 27,763 4.0%
Marketable securities — fixed rate 23,085 2.0% 10,737 4.1%
Total $52,244 $42,329

Currency Risk

Historically, a large portion of our total revenues has been generated from outside of the United States.
International revenue as a percentage of our total revenues was approximately 75% for fiscal 2002, 70% for
fiscal 2001 and 86% for fiscal 2000. We anticipate that international revenue will remain a substantial portion of
our total revenues in the future. As all of our sales are currently denominated in United States dollars, a
strengthening of the United States dollar could make our products less competitive in foreign markets. We face
increasing pressure from our customers in Europe to denominate our sales to such customers in Euro. We do not
use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. We have not historically engaged in any
foreign currency hedging transactions.
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements that appear on page F-1 of this report. The
Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants, the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, which
appear beginning on page F-2 of this report, are incorporated by reference into this Item 8.

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following table presents certain unaudited consolidated statement of operations data . for our eight most
recent fiscal quarters. The information for ¢ach of these quarters is unaudited and has been prepared on the same
basis as our audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K. In the
opinion of our management, all necessary adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, have
been included to present fairly the unaudited quarterly results when read in conjunction with our Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes included eisewhere in this report on Form 10-K. We believe that results
of operations for interim periods should not be relied upon as any indication of the results to be expected or
achieved in any future period.

Three Months Ended,
Sep 30, June 30, Mar 30, Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 390, Mar 30, Dec 31,
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000

(Unaudited, in thousands)

Revenue:
License $ 9,219 $7418 $5492 $5599 $ 5177 §$ 5942 § 5555 $4462
Net Royalty 2,492 2,545 2,512 1,969 1,219 1,170 1,140 1,092
Total revenues 11,711 9,963 8,004 7,568 6,396 7,112 6,695 5,554
Costs and expenses
Cost of revenues 3,089 2,086 1,541 1,581 1,567 1,871 1,512 1,021
Product development 2,829 2,923 3,215 2,902 3,946 2,993 3,220 2,279
Sales and marketing 2,443 2,268 2,027 2,044 1,691 1,812 1,581 1,426
General and administrative 1,125 1,172 594 608 1,284 762 656 669
In-process research and
development — — — — — — 2,441 —
Amortization of purchased
intangible assets 491 492 492 492 492 492 492 —
Amortization of goodwill and
acquired workforce — — — — 1,528 1,532 1,520 —
Total costs and expenses 9,977 8,941 7,869 7,627 10,508 9,462 11,422 5,395
Operating income (loss) 1,734 1,022 135 (59) 4,112)  (2,350) (4.727) 159
Interest and other income
(expense), net 223 195  (1,051) 256 (674) 412 588 900
Income (loss) before provision
(benefit) for income taxes 1,957 1,217 (916) 197 (4,786)  (1,938) (4,139) 1,059
Provisions (benefit) for income taxes 148 75 38 79 5,874 (659) (1,407 360
Net income (loss) $ 1,809 $1,142 $ (954) § 118 $(10,660) $(1,279) $(2,732) § 699
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 011 $ 0.07 $(0.06) $ 001 $ (065 $ (0.08) $ (0.17) $ 0.05
Diluted $ 010 $ 006 $(0.06) $ 001 $ (065 8 (0.08) $ (0.i17) $ 0.05

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
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'PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE GFFICERS

The information required by this item concerning our directors is incorporated by reference to the sections
captioned “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ contained in
our definitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed by us with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General
Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K. Certain information required by this item concerning executive officers is set
forth in Part I of this Report under the caption “Business—Executive Officers” and certain other information
required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance™ contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2003 annual stockholders’ meeting.

ITEM 1i. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Executive
Compensation and Other Matters” contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2003 annual stockholders’
meeting.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned “Record Date and
Principal Share Ownership” contained in our definitive proxy statement for our 2003 annual stockholders’
meeting.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Certain Transactions” contained in our definitive proxy
statement for our 2003 annual stockholders’ meeting.

ITEM 14. DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Based on their evaluation as of a date within 90 days of the filing of this Form 10-K, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files
or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. There have been no
significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those
controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation. There were no significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses, and therefore there were no corrective actions taken.
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PART 1V

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:
(1) Financial Statements

See the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements which appears on page F-1 of this report. The
Report of Independent Accountants, the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, which appear beginning on page
F-2 of this report are incorporated by reference in Item 8 of this report:

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

See the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements which appears on page F-1 of this report.
Financial Statement Schedules not listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements have been omitted
because they are not applicable or are not required or the information required to be set forth therein is included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description of Exhibit

3.1(D) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation.

3.2(D) Bylaws of the Registrant.

4.1(6) Securities Rights and Restrictions Agreement by and among Registrant and Synopsys, Inc., dated
January 1, 2001.

4.2(10) Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated December 12, 2001 between the Registrant and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

10.1(12)* 1993 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

10.1.1(1)* Form of Agreement under 1993 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

10.2(1)* 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.3(1)* 1997 Director Stock Option Plan.

10.4(12)* 2000 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and form of agreement thereunder, as amended.

10.5(1)* Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers.

10.6(1) Lease Agreement dated June 16, 1997 between Registrant, Richard Bowling and Katherine
Bowling for 1195 Bordeaux Drive, Sunnyvale, California office.

10.7(3) Form of License Agreement of the Registrant.

10.8(2)(3) License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997 between the Registrant and Taiwan

10.8.1(2)(8)

10.8.2(2)(8)

Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation or TSMC, as amended.

Addendum dated September 30, 1999 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997
between the Registrant and TSMC, as amended.

Amendment dated June 30, 2000 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997 between
the Registrant and TSMC, as amended.

10.8.3(2) Addendum dated September 10, 2002 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997
between the Registrant and TSMC, as amended.

10.9(5) Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 1, 1999 by and between the Registrant and The
Dai-Tokyo Fire and Marine Insurance Co., Ltd., for Yoyogi 3-25-3, Shibuya-Ku, Tokyo, Japan.

10.10(8)* Severance Agreement dated September 11, 2000 between the Registrant and Joy E. Leo.
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10.112)(7) Master License Agreement dated February 28, 2001 between the Registrant and National

Semiconductor Corporation (the “National Master License”).

10.11.1(2)(11) Amendment to National Master License dated December 21, 2001 between the Registrant and

National Semiconductor Corporation.

10.12(7)* Severance Agreement dated June 7, 2001 between the Registrant and Harry Dickinson.
10.13(9) Sublease Agreement dated August 22, 2001 between the Registrant and Globalcenter Inc. and

Global Crossing North America for 141 Caspian Ct., Sunnyvale, California office.

10.14(2)(11) Master License Agreement dated April 26, 2002 between the Registrant and International

Business Machines Corporation.

10.15(8) Consulting Agreement dated July 21, 2000 between the Registrant and Leon Malmed.
10.15.1 Consulting Termination Agreement and Release dated August 1, 2002 between the Registrant

21.1
23.1
24.1
89.1
99.2

and Leon Malmed.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants.

Power of Attorney (see page 45).

Certifications of CEO and CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Audit Committee approval of Non-Audit Services.

(1)
2

(3
4
(5
©®
(7
®
®
(10)
(an

(12)

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-41219) which was declared effective on February 2, 1998.

Certain information in these exhibits has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to a confidential treatment request under 17 C.F.R. Sections 200.80(b)(4),
200.83, 230.46 and 240.24b-2.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-50243) which was declared effective on April 29, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-50243) which was declared effective on April 29, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) on December 10, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No.
000-23649) on September 15, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No.
000-23649) on August 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) on December 22, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) on December 11, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A
(000-23649) on December 27, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(000-23649) on May 15, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(333-101465) on November 26, 2002.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement covering executive officers or directors of the
Registrant,

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The Registrant did not file any reports on Form 8-K during the three months ended September 30, 2002.
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SIGNATURES'

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.

By: /s/ Mark R. Templeton
Mark R. Templeton
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

By: /s/ Joy E. Leo

Joy E. Leo

Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary

Dated: December 27, 2002

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know All Men By These Presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
Mark R. Templeton and Joy E. Leo, jointly and severally, his or her attorney-in-fact, each with the power of
substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Report on Form 10-K and to file
the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his or her substitute or
substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report on Form 10-K has been signed
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/S/ MARK R. TEMPLETON President and Chief Executive Officer, December 27, 2002
(Mark R. Templeton) Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/S/JOY E. LEO Vice President, Finance and . December 27, 2002
(Joy E. Leo) Administration, Chief Financial Officer,

and Secretary (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)
/S/ SCOTT T. BECKER Chief Technology Officer and Director December 27, 2002
(Scott T. Becker)
/S/LUCIO L. LANZA Chairman of the Board of Directors December 27, 2002
(Lucio L. Lanza)
/S/ LEON MALMED Director December 27, 2002
(Leon Malmed)
/S/ MORIO KUROSAKI Director December 27, 2002

(Morio Kurosaki)
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3.1
3.1.1
3.2(1)
4.1(6)

4.2(10)

10.1(12)*
10.1.1(1)*
10.2(1)*
10.3(1)*
10.4(12)*
10.5(1)*
10.6(1)

10.73)
10.8(2)(3)

10.8.1(2)(8)

10.8.2(2)(8)
10.8.3(2)
10.9(5)

10.10(8)*
10.11Q2)(7)

10.11.1(2)(11)

10.12(7)*
10.13(9)

10.14(2)(11)

10.15(8)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorp{);ation of the Registrant.
Certificate of Designation.
Bylaws of the Registrant.

Securities Rights and Restrictions Agreement by and among Registrant and Synopsys, Inc.,
dated January 1, 2001.

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated December 12, 2001 between the Registrant and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

1993 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

Form of Agreement under 1993 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

1997 Director Stock Option Plan,

2000 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and form of agreement thereunder, as amended..
Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers.

Lease Agreement dated June 16, 1997 between Registrant, Richard Bowling and Katherine
Bowling for 1195 Bordeaux Drive, Sunnyvale, California office.

Form of License Agreement of the Registrant.

License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997 between the Registrant and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, as amended.

Addendum dated September 30, 1999 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997
between the Registrant and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation or TSMC, as
amended.

Amendment dated June 30, 2002 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997 between
the Registrant and TSMC, as amended.

Addendum dated September 10, 2002 to License Agreement dated as of November 30, 1997
between the Registrant and TSMC, as amended.

Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 1, 1999 by and between the Registrant and The
Dai-Tokyo Fire and Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. for Yoyogi 3-25-3, Shibuya-Ku, Tokyo, Japan.

Severance Agreement dated September 11, 2000 between the Registrant and Joy E. Leo.

Master License Agreement dated February 28, 2001 between the Registrant and National
Semiconductor Corporation (the “National Master License”).

Amendment to National Master License dated December 21, 2001 between the Registrant and
National Semiconductor Corporation.

Severance Agreement dated June 7, 2001 between the Registrant and Harry Dickinson.

Sublease Agreement dated August 22, 2001 between the Registrant and Globalcenter Inc. and
Global Crossing North America for 14] Caspian Ct., Sunnyvale, California office.

Master License Agreement dated April 26, 2002 between the Registrant and International
Business Machines Corporation.

Consulting Agreement dated July 21, 2000 between the Registrant and Leon Malmed.




21.1
23.1
241
99.1
99.2

Consulting Termination Agreement and Release dated August 1, 2002 between the Registrant
and Leon Malmed.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants.

Power of Attorney (see page 45).

Certiﬁca';ions of CEO and CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Audit Committee approval of Non-Audit Services.
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)
(6)
()
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®
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Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-41219) which was declared effective on February 2, 1998.

Certain information in these exhibits has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to a confidential treatment request under 17 C.F.R. Sections 200.80(b)(4),
200.83, 230.46 or 240.24b-2.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-50243) which was declared effective on April 29, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.
333-50243) which was declared effective on April 29, 1998,

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) On December 10, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No.
000-23649) on September 15, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No.
000-23649) on August 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) on December 22, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No.
000-23649) on December 11, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A
(000-23649) on December 27, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(000-23649) on May 15, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(333-101465) on November 26, 2002.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement covering executive officers or directors of the
Registrant.
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Artisan Components, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item
15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Artisan Components, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended September 30, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statement
schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material -respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
October 22, 2002
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ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.
CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities

Contract receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $280 and $655 at
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill, net
Purchased intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

LEABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue, current portion
Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments (Note 10)

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $0.001 par value;
Authorized: 50,000;

Issued and outstanding: 16,898 and 16,487 shares at September 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively

Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

September 30,

2002 2001

$29,159 § 31,592
23,085 10,737

7,232 6,292

2,345 1,545
61,821 50,166
3,499 4,422
13,741 13,741
221 4,238
1,116 459

$82,448 § 73,026

$§ 81 § 172

4,081 5,150
5,924 3,630
10,866 8,952
812 173
1,610 516

13,288 9,641

17 16
77,170 73,511
(8,027) (10,142)

69,160 63,385
$82,448 § 73,026

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

Revenue:

License , $27,728 § 21,136 $17,042

Net royalty - 9,518 4,621 3,250

Total revenues 37,246 25,757 20,292

Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues 8,297 5,971 5,462 .

Product development 11,869 = 12,438 6,837

Sales and marketing 8,782 6,510 6,999

General and administrative 3,499 3,371 2,324

In-process research and development — 2,441 —

Amortization of purchased intangible assets 1,967 1,476 —

Amortization of goodwill and acquired workforce — 4,580 —

Total costs and expenses - 34414 36,787 21,622

Operating income (loss) 2,832 (11,030)  (1,330)
Interest and other (expense) income, net (377 1,226 2,945
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 2,455 (9,804) 1,615
Provision for income taxes 340 4,168 533
Net income (loss) $ 2,115 $(13,972) § 1,082
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $§ 013 § (083 § 008

Diluted § 012 § (0.88) § 0.07
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share:

Basic 16,716 15,965 14,334

Diluted 17,991 15,965 15,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

{In thousands)
Retained
Common Stock Additional Earnings /
Paid (Accumulated
Shares Amount In Capital Deficit) Total
Balance at October 1, 1999 13910 $ 14 $ 54358 § 2,748 $57,120
Options exercised , 651 1 2,604 — 2,605
Common Stock issued pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan 169 — 888 — 888
Compensation expense related to options granted — — 56 — 56
Tax benefit arising from disqualifying dispositions
of stock options — — 1,703 — 1,703
Net income — — — 1,082 1,082
Balance at September 30, 2000 14,730 15 59,609 3,830 63,454
Options exercised 158 1 973 — 974
Common Stock issued pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan 149 — 977 — 977
Common Stock issued in connection with the
acquisition of certain assets of the physical library
business of Synopsys 1,450 — 11,509 — 11,509
Compensation expense related to options granted — — 8 — 8
Tax benefit arising from disqualifying dispositions
of stock options — — 435 — 435
Net loss — — — (13,972) (13,972)
Balance at September 30, 2001 16,487 16 73,511 (10,142) 63,385
Options exercised 238 1 1,784 — 1,785
Common Stock issued pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan 173 — 1,320 — 1,320
Tax benefit arising from disqualifying dispositions
of stock options — — 555 —_ 555
Net income ‘ — — — 2,115 2,115
Balance at September 30, 2002 16,808 ¢ 17 $ 77,170 § (8,027) $£69,160

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Years ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 2,115 $(13,972) § 1,082
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,410 8,552 2,711
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets (42) 18 (89)
Provision for doubtful accounts (342) 370 —
Compensation expense related to options granted — 8 56
Tax benefit related to disqualified dispositions 555 435 1,703
In-process research and development — 2,441 —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Contract receivables, net (1,453) 1,060 (D
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (800) 179 128
Other assets 198 (257 122
Deferred taxes — 4,053 (3,444)
Accounts payable , 689 (601) (506)
Accrued liabilities (1,069) 2,238 884
Deferred revenue 2,933 2,217) 945
Other liabilities 1,094 398 —
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,288 2,705 3,591
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (1,478) (1,863) (1,369)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 50 120
Acquisition of certain assets of the physical library business of
Synopsys, net of cash acquired —  (14,530) —
Purchase of marketable securities (39,570)  (40,424) (43,079)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 27,222 50,425 55,289
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (13,826) (6,342) 10,961
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 3,105 1,951 3,493
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,433) (1,686) 18,045
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 31,592 33,278 15,233
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 29,159 § 31,592 § 33,278

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Fixed asset acquisitions in exchange for accounts payable $ — 8 34§ 18
Issuance of common stock and assumption of abligations in connection
with the acquisition of certain assets of the physical library business

of Synopsys $ — $ 12859 § —
CASH PAID FOR:
Income taxes $ 908 $ 393 § 566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.




ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Artisan Components, Inc. (“Artisan” or the “Company”) is a leading developer of high performance, high
density and low power embedded memory, standard cell and input/output (“I/0”) IP (“IP”) components for the
design and manufacture of complex integrated circuits (“ICs”). The Company licenses its products to
semiconductor manufacturers and fabless semiconductor companies for the design of ICs used in complex, high
volume applications, such as portable computing devices, cellular phones, consumer multimedia products,
automotive electronics, personal computers and workstations.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries after elimination of all inter-company transactions. The Company’s fiscal year end is
September 30.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to revenue
recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, warranty costs, goodwill impairment, contingencies, restructuring
costs and other special charges and taxes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to conform to the current year
presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities or remaining maturities at the date
of acquisition of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with four
major financial institutions. Deposits held with banks may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such
deposits. Generally, these deposits may be redeemed upon demand.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of certain of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents,
contract receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term
maturities.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s investments are primarily comprised of U.S. government notes and bonds; corporate notes and
bonds; and commercial paper. Investments with original maturities of greater than three months and less than
one year are considered to be short-term. Investments are custodied with major financial institutions. Realized
gains and losses are recorded using the specific identification method. At September 30, 2002 and 2001, all of
the Company’s investments were classified as available-for-sale and were recorded on the consolidated balance
sheets at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on these investments are included as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of any related tax effect. As of September 30, 2002 and




2001, unrealized gains or losses were immaterial. The amortized cost of debt securities is adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity, both of which are included in interest income.
The Company recognizes an impairment charge when the decline in fair value of its investments below the cost
basis is judged to be other-than-temporary.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally
three to five years. Depreciation and amortization of leasehold improvements are computed using the shorter of
the estimated useful lives or the terms of their respective leases.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards. No. 121 (“SFAS 1217), “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” Determination of recoverability is
based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its eventual
disposition. Measurement of an impairment loss for long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets
that management expects to hold and use is based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangible assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (“SFAS 141”), “Business Combinations™ and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

SFAS 141 establishes the purchase method as the only acceptable methodology for accounting for a business
combination. In addition, SFAS 141 provides guidance for allocating the cost of an acquired entity, including the
recognition and identification of goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS 141, an acquired workforce
does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset that is separable from goodwill. As such, at
October 1, 2001, the Company reclassified to goodwill the carrying value of its previously identified acquired
workforce that was recognized in the Company’s acquisition of the physical library business of Synopsys (See
Note 3). As a result of this reclassification, the gross carrying value of goodwill increased by $1.4 million to
$18.3 million.

SFAS 142 requires goodwill to be tested on an annual basis and between annual tests in certain circumstances,
and written down when impaired, rather than being amortized as previous accounting standards required. Under
this standard, goodwill is no longer amortized and, as such, the Company stopped amortizing its goodwill as of
October 1, 2001. Furthermore, SFAS 142 requires purchased intangible assets other than goodwill to be
amortized over their expected useful lives unless these lives are determined to be indefinite (See Note 3).
Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally two to three years.

For the purposes of the impairment tests, the Company considers itself a single reporting unit, as defined by
SFAS 142. To conduct these tests, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared to its carrying value. To the
extent that the reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then compare the implied
fair value of the reporting units’ goodwill to its carrying value to determine if an impairment has occurred. This
exercise entails the allocation of the reporting units’ total fair value to its assets and liabilities in a manner similar
to that of the purchase price allocation methodology prescribed under SFAS 141. Any resulting impairment
would be expensed immediately.

The Company conducted the required initial impairment test in October 2001 and the annual impairment test in
September 2002, and concluded that no impairment had occurred.




The following table presents the impact of SFAS 142 on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share had
the accounting standard been in effect for fiscal 2001 and 2000 (in thousands, except per-share amounts):

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2600

Net income (loss), as reported $2,115  $(13,972) $1,082

Add back: goodwill amortization expense, net of tax 4,238 —

Add back: acquired workforce amortization expense, net of tax 342 —
Net income (loss), as adjusted $2,115  $ (9,392) $1,082
Net income (loss) per common share - Basic:

As reported $ 013 $ (0.88) $ 0.08

As adjusted $013 § (059 §$ 008
Net income (loss) per common share - Diluted:

As reported $ 012 $§ (0.88) § 0.07

As adjusted $ 012 $ (039 $ 007

All of the Company’s acquired intangible assets, except for goodwill, are subject to amortization over their
estimated useful lives. Purchased intangible assets include existing technologies and non-compete agreements.
No significant residual value is estimated for the intangible assets. Intangible asset amortization was $2.0 million
in fiscal 2002 and $1.5 million in fiscal 2001.

The components of goodwill assets are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2002 2001
Goodwill assets $18,321 $16,953
Acquired workforce — 1,368
Goodwill assets $18,321 $18,321
Accumulated amortization (4,580) (4,580)
Goodwill assets, net $13,741 $13,741

The components of purchased intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2002 2001
Acquired technology 5,338 5,338
Non-compete agreement 376 376
Purchased intangible assets $5,714 $5,714
Accumulated amortization (3,443) (1,476)
Purchased intangible assets, net $2,271 $4,238

As of September 30, 2002, the Company believes there are no impairment losses of its intangible assets,
goodwill and other long-lived assets. However, no assurances can be given that future evaluations of intangible
assets, goodwill and other long-lived assets will not result in changes as a result of future impairment.

Expected future estimated annual amortization expense as of September 30, 2002 of intangible assets is as
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal 2003 $1,826
Fiscal 2004 445
$2,271
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income generally represents all changes in stockholders’ equity except those resulting from
investments of contributions by stockholders. The unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities and
foreign currency translation adjustments are comprehensive income items applicable to the Company. The effect
of such items was immaterial to all periods presented.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists of license revenue and net royalty revenue. License revenue is comprised of license fees,
maintenance fees and support fees. License fees are the fees earned from license agreements with customers to
provide the Company’s intellectual property (“IP”) component products. The Company’s IP component products
can be purchased with or without customization. IP component products consist of data and/or software and
related documentation that enable a customer to design and manufacture complex integrated circuits (“IC”). The
purpose of the license is to permit the customer to use the Company’s IP in connection with the design and
manufacture of the customers’ products.

For all licenses, the Company uses a binding purchase order and a signed license agreement as evidence of an
arrangement. The Company assesses cash collectibility based on a number of factors, including past collection
history with the customer and the credit worthiness of the customer. In cases where a customer’s credit
worthiness is uncertain, the Company requires a letter of credit as assurance of payment.

For licensed products which do not require significant customization of the Company’s IP component, license
revenue is generally recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the software has been
shipped or electronically delivered, the license fee is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting
receivable is probable.

For licensed products requiring significant customization of the Company’s IP component, license revenue is
generally recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting over the period that services are
performed. For all license and service agreements accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method, the
Company determines progress-to-completion based on actual direct labor hours incurred as a percentage of the
estimated total direct labor hours required to complete the project. The Company periodically evaluates the
actual status of each project to ensure that the estimates to complete each contract remains accurate. A provision
for estimated losses on contracts is made in the period in which the loss becomes probable and can be reasonably
estimated. To date, such losses have not been significant. Costs incurred in advance of billings are recorded as
costs in excess of related billings on uncompleted contracts. If the amounts of revenue recognized exceed the
amounts received from customers, the excess amount is recorded as unbilled contract receivables. If the amounts
billed exceed the amounts of revenue recognized, the excess amount is recorded as deferred revenue.

For arrangements with multiple elements, the Company allocates revenue to each element of a transaction based
upon its fair value as determined in reliance on vendor specific objective evidence. Vendor specific objective
evidence of fair value for all elements of an arrangement is based upon the normal pricing and discounting
practices for those licensed products and services when sold separately and, for maintenance, is additionally
measured by the renewal rate. If the Company cannot objectively determine the fair value of any undelivered
element included in license arrangements, the Company defers revenue until all elements are delivered, services
have been performed, or until fair value can objectively be determined. When the fair value of a license element
has not been established, the Company uses the residual method to record license revenue if the fair value of all
undelivered elements is determinable. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is
deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee is allocated to the delivered elements and is
recognized as revenue.

Maintenance fees are derived from maintenance contracts, which are part of the licensing arrangement.
Maintenance contracts include telephone and email support and the right to receive unspecified upgrades on a
when-and-if available basis. First year maintenance is typically sold with the related licensed product and may be
renewed on an annual basis thereafter. Maintenance fees are deferred based on vendor-specific objective
evidence of fair value and recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance period. Vendor-specific objective
evidence of maintenance is generally determined based on renewal rates stated in individual contracts.
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Support fees are derived from arrangements with customers of our licensed foundries to support the use of our
libraries in their designs. Support fees include telephone and email support and the right to receive unspecified
upgrades on a when-and-if available basis. Support fees are recognized ratably over the support period. Support
is generally for a period of 12 months and may be renewed on an annual basis.

Royalty revenue is calculated based on unit sales by manufacturers of ICs containing the Company’s IP. License
agreements dictate royalty reporting by each customer on either a per-chip or per-wafer basis. Royalties are
generally determined and recognized one quarter in arrears, when a production volume report is received from
the customer. In accordance with contract terms, a portion of each royalty is credited back to the customer’s
account for use as payment of license fees for future orders. The remaining portion of the gross royalty is
reported as net royalty revenue. The amount of credits that can be earned by a customer is limited to the
cumulative amount of orders placed by that customer for a given process technology. Customers have a limited
time to use the credits before they expire, generally 18 months from the time royalties are earned. As a result, the
Company defers royalties associated with these credits until the customer purchases additional licenses or these
credits expire, whichever is earlier. If customers do not use the credits within this 18 month period, the Company
records the amount of expired credits as net royalty revenue as the Company no longer has an obligation to
provide any future products for such expired credits.

Cost of revenues are primarily comprised of salaries and benefits of direct employees assigned to revenue
bearing projects and depreciation and amortization of equipment and software used in the development of the
Company’s products. Cost of revenues are allocated based on the amount of time devoted to each contract by the
employees and includes an accrual for warranty and product support costs.

Product development

The Company expenses the cost of product development as incurred. Product development expenses principally
consist of payroll and related costs and depreciation and amortization of equipment and software used in product
development projects.

Software Development Costs

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, “Accounting for Costs of Computer
Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,” costs incurred in the research and development of new
software products and enhancements to existing software products are expensed as incurred until technological
feasibility has been established. The Company believes its current process for developing software s essentially
completed concurrently with the establishment of technological feasibility which is evidenced by a working
model; accordingly, software costs incurred after the establishment of technological feasibility have not been
significant and, therefore, no costs have been capitalized to date. The Company has also not incurred any
software development costs for internal use required to be capitalized pursuant to Statement of Position No.
98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.”

Advertising Costs

Expenses related to advertising and promotional activities are charged to sales and marketing expense as
incurred. Advertising expense was $28,000 in fiscal 2002, $177,000 in fiscal 2001 and $93,000 in fiscal 2000.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries that operate in a local currency environment are translated to U.S.
dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date with resulting translation adjustments directly
recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), if material. Income and
expense accounts are translated at average exchange rates during the year. Where the U.S. dollar is the functional
currency, translation adjustments are recorded in other income (loss). Translation adjustment gains and losses
have not been material to date.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected
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to affect taxable income. A valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amounts expected to be realized.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions
of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving
Stock Compensation an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25,” and complies with the disclosure provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“SFAS 123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” Under APB 25, compensation expense is based on the difference, if any, on the date of the
grant, between the fair value of the Company’s stock and the exercise price of the option.

The Company accounts for stock issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123 and
Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.” The Company uses the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to value options granted to non-employees.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share are computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per
share.” Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share is
computed using the treasury stock method giving effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that were
outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common shares consist of the exercise of stock options for all
periods. Such potentially dilutive common shares are not included during periods in which the Company
experienced a net loss, as the impact would be anti-dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”),
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The objectives of SFAS 144 are to address
significant issues relating to the implementation of SFAS 121 and to develop a single accounting model, based
on the framework established in SFAS 121, for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, whether previously
held and used or newly acquired. SFAS 144 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001 and, generally, its provisions are to be applied prospectively. The Company does not
believe the adoption of SFAS 144 will have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS 146"),
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and replaces EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or
disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the liability is incurred. SFAS 146
is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not
believe the adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.

NOTE 3. ACQUISITICN

On January 4, 2001, the Company completed its acquisition of certain assets of Synopsys’ physical library
business (“Physical Library Business”) for $27.4 million including ${4.5 million in cash, 1.5 million shares of
the Company’s common stock valued at $11.5 million and the assumption of $1.4 million of liabilities.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and the results of the Physical
Library Business have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements since the date of
acquisition. Accordingly, the purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values on the date of the acquisition, based on management’s estimates and an
independent valuation report. The excess of the purchase price over the amounts allocated to the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed was recorded as goodwill.
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Portions of the purchase price were allocated to certain intangible assets such as existing technotogy, acquired
workforce and in-process research and development. The amount of the purchase price allocated to in-process
research and development was determined by estimating the stage of completion of each in-process research
project at the date of acquisition and the estimated net present value of cash flows based on incremental future
cash flows from revenue expected to be generated by the technologies in the process of development, taking into
account the characteristics and applications of the technologies, the size and growth rate of existing and future
markets and an evaluation of past and anticipated technology and product life cycles. Estimated net future cash
flows included allocations of operating expenses and income taxes, but excluded the expected completion costs
of the in-process research projects. The discount rate applied to the net cash flows was 30%, which reflected the
level of risk associated with the particular technologies and the current return on investment requirements of the
market. At the date of acquisition, technological feasibility of these in-process research projects had not been
reached and the technology had no alternative future uses without further development. Accordingly, the
Company expensed the portion of the purchase price allocated to in-process research and development of $2.4
million at the date of acquisition.

The stages of completion were determined by estimating the costs and time incurred to date relative to the costs
and time incurred to develop the in-process technology into a commercially viable technology or product, while
considering the relative difficulty of completing the various tasks and overcoming the obstacles necessary to
attain technological feasibility. The weighted average stage of completion for all projects, in the aggregate, was
approximately 75% as of the acquisition date. Upon completion, cash flows from sales of products incorporating
those technologies were estimated to commence in fiscal 2001.

The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands, except number of years):

Estimated Useful

Amount Life (in years)
Tangible assets acquired $ 914 1-3
Identifiable intangibles acquired
In-process research and development 2,441 N/A
Existing technology 5,338 3
Noncompete agreements 376 2
Acquired workforce 1,368 N/A
Goodwill 16,953 N/A
Net assets acquired $27,390

NOTE 4. BUSINESS RISKS AND CREDIT CONCENTRATION

The Company operates in an intensely competitive industry that has been characterized by rapid technological
change, short product life cycles, cyclical market patterns and heightened foreign and domestic competition.
Significant technological changes in the industry could affect operating results adversely.

The Company markets and sells its technology to a narrow base of customers and generally does not require
collateral. At September 30, 2002, three customers accounted for 27%, 26% and 14% of gross contract
receivables. At September 30, 2001, two customers accounted for 56% and 12% of gross contract receivables.
Gross contract receivables include unbilled receivables.

As of September 30, 2002, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were deposited with four major financial
institutions in the form of demand deposits, money market accounts, corporate and government bonds,
certificates of deposit and commercial paper. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk comprise principally cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and contract
receivables. The Company invests its excess cash primarily in high-quality government and corporate debt
instruments that mature within one year.
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NOTE 5. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities, classified as available-for-sale securities, included the following (in thousands):

Corporate and government bonds and notes
Commercial paper

Marketable securities

All short-term investments have maturities of less than one year from the respective balance sheet dates. The
cost of marketable securities approximates fair value of the securities and there are no material unrealized

holding gains or losses.

NOTE 6. CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

Contract receivables were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Accounts receivable

Costs in excess of related billings on uncompleted contracts
Gross contract receivables

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Long-term portion of contract receivables
Contract receivables, net

NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Computer equipment and software

Office furniture

Leasehold improvements
Property and equipment

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

NOTE 8. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation
Provision for unused leased facility
Accrued warranty
Deferred taxes
Accrued liabilities
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September 30,
2002 2001

$13,019 $ 6,018
10,066 4,719

$23,085 $10,737

September 36,
2002 2001
$3,043 § 6,331
5,324 616
8,367 6,947
(280)  (655)
(855) —

$7,232 §6,292

September 30,
2062 2001
$ 10,786 $ 9,845
1,522 1,556
2,894 2,763

15202 14,164
(11,703)  (9,742)

$ 3499 § 4422

September 30,
2002 2001
1,846 2,424
1,882 1,540

222 560
131 127
— 499

$4,081 §5,150




NOTE 9. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities were comprised of the following (in thousands):

September 38,

2602 2001
Deferred rent § 770 8169
Provision for unused leased facility (Note 12) 840 347

Other liabilities $1,610 8516

NQOTE 10. COMMITMENTS

The following table represents the future minimum annual lease payments of the Company as of September 30,
2002 (in thousands):

Fiscal 2003 $ 2,283
Fiscal 2004 2,426
Fiscal 2005 1,930
Fiscal 2006 2,007
Fiscal 2007 and thereafter 4,085

Total minimum annual lease payments $12,731

The Company rents its office facility in Sunnyvale, California under a non-cancelable operating lease that
expires in 2008. Under the terms of the lease, the Company is responsible for a proportionate amount of taxes,
insurance and common area maintenance costs.

The Company continues to lease its previous office facility in Sunnyvale under a non-cancelable lease that
expires in September 2004. The Company is actively seeking a sub-tenant for this building. As a result, the
Company has accrued a provision of $1.1 million and $907,000 at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
for the anticipated loss on subleasing the facility, including the estimated commission expenses relating to the
sublease.

The Company also leases facilities for its sales and support office in Paris, France and Tokyo, Japan, which
expire in 2002 and 2004, respectively.

The Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period and has accrued for rent
expense incurred but not paid. Net rent expense was $2.2 million in fiscal 2002, $783,000 in fiscal 2001 and
$625,000 in fiscal 2000.

NOTE 11. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Autheorized Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock, $0.001 par value per
share, of which no shares were issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2002 and 2001. Preferred stock may
be issued from time to time in one or more series. The Board of Directors is authorized to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to and imposed upon any wholly unissued series of preferred
stock and to fix the number of shares of any series of preferred stock and the designation of any such series
without any vote or action by the Company’s stockholders.

Stock Option Plans

The Company had reserved 5,723,350 shares of its Common Stock under its 1993 Stock Option Plan, as
amended (the “1993 Plan”) for issuance upon the exercise of incentive and nonstatutory stock options to
employees, directors and consultants as of September 30, 2002. The 1993 Plan expires in October 2003. The
1993 Plan provides for an automatic annual increase in the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder
commencing on October 1, 2000 in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 1,000,000 shares, (ii) 5% of the
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outstanding shares on such date or (iii) such amount as determined by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to such
mechanism, on October 1, 2002, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 1993 plan was increased
by 845,790 shares to a total of 7,393,514. On October 1, 2001, the number of shares reserved for issuance under
the 1993 Plan was increased by 824,374 shares to a total of 6,547,724, On October 1, 2000, the number of shares
reserved for issuance under the 1993 Plan was increased by 736,489 shares to a total of 5,723,350. On October 1,
1999, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 1993 Plan was increased by 695,465 shares to a total
0f 4,986,861. Incentive stock options may be granted with exercise prices of no less than fair market value, and
non-statutory stock options may be granted with exercise prices of no less than 85% of the fair market value of
the common stock on the grant date, as determined by the Board of Directors. Options become exercisable as
determined by the Board of Directors but generally at a rate of 25% after the first year and 6.25% each quarter
thereafter. Options expire as determined by the Board of Directors but not more than ten years after the date of
grant. At September 30, 2002, options to purchase a total of 4,055,715 shares of Common Stock were
outstanding under the 1993 Plan.

In November 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Director Option Plan (the “Director Plan”). The Director
Plan provides for the granting of options of up to 200,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company. The option
grants under the Director Plan are automatic and nondiscretionary, and the exercise price of the options is 100%
of the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant. The Director Plan provides for an
initial grant of options to purchase 25,000 shares of Common Stock to each new non-employee director. In
addition, each non-employee director will automatically be granted an option to purchase 5,000 shares of
Common Stock annually. Options granted under the Director Plan become exercisable over a four year period
with the 25,000 share grants vesting as to one-fourth of the shares on the first anniversary of the date of grant
and then monthly thereafter and the 5,000 share grants vesting monthly. At September 30, 2002, options to
purchase a total of 110,000 shares of Common Stock were outstanding under the Director Plan. The Director
Plan expires in February 2008.

In December 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Supplemental Stock Option Plan (the “2000 Plan”) for
issuance upon the exercise of nonstatutory stock options to employees and consultants, other than officers of the
Company and members of the Board of Directors of the Company. The 2000 Plan provides for granting of
options of up to 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company. On October 1, 2002, the number of shares
reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan was increased by 207,672 to a total of 1,207,672. The 2000 Plan
expires in 2010. The 2000 Plan does not provide for automatic increases in the shares reserved for issuance
thereunder. At September 30, 2002, options to purchase a total of 949,782 shares of Common Stock were
outstanding under the 2000 Plan.
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Activity under the 1993 Plan, the Director Plan and the 2000 Plan was as follows (in thousands except per share
data):

Weighted
Average
Shares Outstanding Exercise
Available No. of Price per Price

For Grant Shares Share Total Per Share

Balance at October 1, 1999 741 2,384 $14045 $ 5.89
Additional shares reserved for issuance 695

Granted (1,567) 1,567 $8.31-524.13 17,370 § 11.08

Exercised — (651) $0.01-$17.13 (2,605) $ 4.00

Canceled 481 (481) $0.15-$24.13 (4,095) § 8.52

Balance at September 30, 2000 350 2,819 $24,715 § 877
Additional shares reserved for issuance 1,736

Granted (2,345) 2,345 $6.86-$11.86 19,753 § 842

Exercised — (158) $0.01-$ 9.56 (974) $ 6.16

Canceled 342 (542) $0.25-$19.86 (5,216) § 9.63

Balance at September 30, 2001 283 4,464 $38,278 § 8.57
Additional shares reserved for issuance 824

Granted (1,352) 1,352 $8.15-$16.60 13,085 § 9.68

Exercised — (238) $0.01-$14.94 (1,785) $ 7.50

Canceled 462 (462) $5.00-$19.88 (4,532) § 9.80

Balance at September 30, 2002 217 5,116 $45046 § 8.81

The options outstanding and currently exercisable by exercise price at September 30, 2002 are as follows (in
thousands, except per share data):

Exercise Price Options OQutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted  Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number Remaining  Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Price QOutstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 0.01-$ 7.25 1,187 6.72 £ 5091 828 $ 541
§ 7.44-$ 8.31 1,159 7.46 $ 8.16 468 $ 8.03
$ 8.44-5 9.17 1,074 9.13 $ 8064 50 $ 879
$ 9.25-$12.75 1,056 8.02 $ 972 481 $§ 967
$13.34-$19.88 640 7.92 $ 14.11 355 $ 1393
5,116 7.81 $ 8381 2,182 $ 837

At September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, options to purchase 2,181,952, 1,299,727 and 743,856 shares of
Common Stock, respectively, were exercisable pursuant to the 1993 Plan, the Director Plan and the 2000 Plan,
respectively with a weighted average cost of $8.37, $7.84 and $5.82, respectively.

The fair value of option grants related to the above plans is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate 4.17% 3.66% 5.86%
Expected average life 6 years  Syears 5 years
Expected dividends — — —
Expected volatility 97% 103% 93%
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The weighted average fair value of options granted was $8.82 in fiscal 2002, $7.33 in fiscal 2001 and $10.28 in
fiscal 2000.

In connection with the grant of options for the purchase of 96,200 shares of Common Stock to employees during
the period from December 1996 through March 1997 and 15,000 shares of Common Stock to non-employees in
January 1998, the Company recorded aggregate deferred compensation of approximately $281,000, representing
the difference between the deemed fair value of the Common Stock and the option exercise price at the date of
grant. Such deferred compensation is amortized over the vesting period relating to the options, of which
approximately $8,000 were amortized in fiscal 2001 and $56,000 were amortized in fiscal 2000. As of
September 30, 2001, the balance was fully amortized to Product Development and Sales and Marketing.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In November 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™) and
reserved 600,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the Purchase Plan. The Purchase Plan provides for
an automatic annual increase in the number of shares reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan. On each
anniversary date of the adoption of the Purchase Plan an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 200,000 shares, (ii) 1%
of the outstanding shares on such date or (iii) a lesser amount as determined by the Board of Directors will be
added to the shares available under the Purchase Plan. In November 2002, 168,980 incremental shares were
reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan. In November 2001, 165,325 incremental shares were reserved for
issuance under the Purchase Plan. In November 2000, 147,714 incremental shares were reserved for issuance
under the Purchase Plan. In November 1999, 140,278 incremental shares were reserved for issuance under the
Purchase Plan. The Purchase Plan authorizes the granting of stock purchase rights to eligible employees during
two-year offering periods with exercise dates approximately every six months. Shares are purchased through
employee payroll deductions at purchase prices equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock at either the first day of each offering period or the date of purchase. As of
September 30, 2002, 706,500 shares had been issued under the Purchase Plan at an average price of $6.12 per
share.

The estimated fair value of purchase rights under the Company’s Purchase Plan is determined using the
Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate 2.17% 4.47% 5.36%
Expected average life 0.57 years  1.07 years  1.35 years
Expected dividends — — —
Expected volatility 100% 100% 98%

The weighted average per share fair value of purchase rights under the Purchase Plan was $4.39 during fiscal
2002, $4.26 during fiscal 2001 and $3.59 during fiscal 2000.
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Stock Compensation

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123. Accordingly, no compensation cost has
been recognized for options granted under the 1993 Plan, the Director Plan, the 2000 Plan or the Purchase Plan.
Had compensation expense been determined at the fair value on the grant dates for awards under the plans
consistent with the method of SFAS 123, the Company’s net income/(loss) in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 would
have been changed to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands, except per share data):

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Net income/(loss)
As reported $ 2,115 ($13,972) $§ 1,082
Pro forma ($7,176) ($21,304) (82,756)
Net income/(loss) per share
As reported
Basic income/(loss) per share $ 013 (30.88) $ 0.08
Diluted income/(loss) per share $§ 012 (50.88) $ 0.07
Pro forma
Basic income/(loss) per share (80.43)  ($1.33) (30.19)
Diluted income/(loss) per share ($0.43) ($1.33) (%0.19)

The effects of SFAS No. 123 on pro forma disclosures of net income/(loss) and net income/(loss) per share for
fiscal 2002, 2001, and 2000 are not likely to be representative of the pro forma effects on net income and
earnings per share in future years.

NOTE 12. INTEREST AND OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME

Interest and other (expense) income were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Interest income $ 910 $ 2,343 $2,996
Other (expense) income (68) 224 51
Provision for unused leased facility (1,219) (1,341
Total interest and other (expense) income ($377) $ 1,226 $2,945

The Company continues to lease its previous facility in Sunnyvale under a non-cancelable lease that expires in
2004. The Company is actively seeking a sub-tenant for this building. As a result of this continuing obligation,
the Company accrued a loss of $1.3 million for the unused leased facility in fiscal 2001, consisting of $230,000
in non-cash charges for the write-off of leasehold improvements and $1.1 million for the anticipated loss on
subleasing the facility, including the estimated commission expense relating to the sublease. During fiscal 2002,
the Company was unable to sublease this building and as a result, recorded an additional $1.2 million loss. At
September 30, 2002, the loss accrued for this unused facility aggregated $1.1 million. Leased facility costs paid
and utilized against the provision amounted to $1.1 million in fiscal 2002 and $434,000 in fiscal 2001. Should
rental rates continue to decrease, and should it take longer than expected to sub-lease this facility, the actual loss
may exceed the accrued loss at September 30, 2002.
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NOTE 13. INCOME TAXES

The provision/(benefit) for income taxes were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Years ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Federal:
Current $98 $§ — § 148
Deferred _— 3483 (175
98 3,483 27

State:

Current — — —
Deferred — 292 —
— 292 —_

Foreign:
Current 242 393 560
Total $340 $4,168 § 533

The Company’s effective tax rate on pretax income/(loss) differed from the U.S. federal statutory regular tax rate
as follows:

Years ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Provision/(benefit) at U.S. federal statutory rate 34.0% (34.0%) 34.0%
State tax, net of federal benefit 5.8 (5.8) 5.8
Research and development credits 285y (3.5 (11.0)
Tax exempt interest — — —
Change in valuation allowance 1.3 86.0 —
Other 0.4 0.2) 4.2
Effective tax rate 13.0% (42.5%) 33.0%

Temporary differences and carryforwards that gave rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of September 30 were as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001
Deferred Tax Assets:
Current:
Net operating losses $ 128 § 416
Deferred revenue 667 1,281
Accruals and reserves 1,024 898
Other credits 59 59
1,878 2,654
Non current:
Research and development credits 1,664 1,081
Accruals and reserves — 67
Foreign tax credits 1,342 1,099
Depreciation and amortization 3,872 3,455
6,878 5,702
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Current:
Accrual to cash conversion — (499)
— (499)
Less: Valuation allowance (8,756)  (8,356)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ — $ (499
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As of September 30, 2002, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) of
approximately $376,000 and $0, respectively, available to offset future taxable income. The Company had
federal and state credits of $2.6 million and $663,000, respectively. The net operating loss and credit
carryforwards expire between 2003 and 2022 if not utilized. Under current tax rules, the amounts of benefits
from net operating loss carryforwards may be impaired or limited in certain circumstances. Events which cause
limitations in the amount of net operating loss that the Company may utilize in any year include, but are not
limited to, a cumulative ownership change of more than 50%, as defined, over a three-year period.

The Company established a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty
surrounding the realization of the benefit of such assets. Management periodically evaluates the recoverability of
the deferred tax assets and will recognize the tax benefit only as reassessment demonstrates they are realizable.
At such time, if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets are realizable, the
valuation allowance will be reduced.

NOTE 14. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of SFAS 128, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator
of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share is provided as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts).

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) $ 2,115  (8$13,972) § 1,082
Weighted-average shares - Basic 16,716 15,965 14,334
Effect of dilutive potential common shares 1,275 — 1,122
Weighted- average shares - Diluted 17,991 15,965 15,456
Net income (loss) per share - Basic $ 0.13 {($0.88) $§ 0.08
Net income (loss) per share - Diluted $ 0.12 (80.88) $§ 0.07

Employee stock options to purchase approximately 3,840,315 shares in fiscal 2002, 4,463,762 shares in fiscal
2001 and 118,958 shares in fiscal 2000 were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the exercise price of the stock options was greater than the average share price of the
common shares and, therefore, the effect would have been antidilutive.

NOTE 15. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” Although the Company offers various IP components and services to its customers, the Company
does not manage its operations by these I[P components and services, but instead views the Company as one
operating segment when making business decisions. The Company does not manage its operations on a
geographical basis. Revenue attributed to the United States and to all foreign countries is based on the
geographical location of the customer. The Company uses one measurement of profitability for its business.

The distribution of revenue by geographic area are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Revenue from Unaffiliated Customers:
Asia - Taiwan $16,546 § 8,644 $ 8,656
Asia - Japan 1,882 6,396 4,601
Asia - Other 7,087 1,779 1,971
Asia Total 25,515 16,819 15,228
United States and Canada 9,271 7,816 2,785
Europe 2,460 1,122 2,279

$37,246  $ 25,757 $20,292
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The distribution of long-term assets by geographic region are summarized as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2002 2001
Long-Term Assets, Net:
United States $20,609  $22,849
Other 18 11

$20,627  $22,860

Revenue from individual customers equal to 10% or more of our total revenues was as follows:

Years ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Percent Percent Percent
A. 39% 26% 35%
B. —_ — 12%
C. — — 10%
D. — 12% —

NOTE 16. BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “401(k) Plan™) for substantially all employees. The
401(k) Plan provides for profit sharing contributions to be made at the discretion of the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company did not elect to make a profit sharing contribution for fiscal 2002, 2001 or 2000.

The 401(k) Plan also provides for elective employee salary reduction contributions and Company matching of
employees’ contributions. Employees may contribute up to 20% of elective compensation. The Company’s
matching contribution is at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s matching

contributions were $267,000 in fiscal 2002, $169,000 in fiscal 2001 and $165,000 in fiscal 2000.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2002, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire outstanding common
stock of the Company in the open market or negotiated transactions. Under the program, up to $5 million of the

Company’s common stock could be reacquired through October 24, 2003,

On October 21, 2002, the Company announced a definitive agreement to acquire NurLogic, a privately held
technology firm headquartered in San Diego, California. NurLogic supplies high-performance mixed signal and
communications IP to the semiconductor industry. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company expects to
acquire NurLogic for consideration of approximately $21 million consisting of cash and stock. The acquisition is

expected to close in the second quarter of fiscal 2003.
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ARTISAN COMPONENTS, INC.

SCHEDULE F - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and End of
Description Period Expenses Write Off Period
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
September 30, 2000 746 — (461) 285
September 30, 2001 285 370 — 655
September 30, 2002 655 (342) (33) 280
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance:
September 30, 2001 — 8,356 — 8,356
September 30, 2002 8,356 400 — 8,756
Provision for unused leased facility:
September 30, 2001 — 1,341 (434) 907
September 30, 2002 907 1,219 (1,064) 1,062
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The Artisan plattorm provides users with a common design foundation that encompasses Artisan’s widely used

library proeducts and world-class support. And the platform connects users to our large network of partner
solutions and a variety of fabrication sources with many of the world’s leading manufacturers. By offering users
texibility and a broad range of choices, IC designs can get to high-volume silicon production more easily

and quickly.

> Artisan delivers thousands of ready-to-use, silicon-proven “building
blocks,” far iC design that span a chip’s most common functions—embedded memory, standard logic cells
and input/output components—which together represent the majority of an IC's “real estate.” By providing a
powerful "jump-start” to the design process, designers can concentrate on their core competencies—the

ditferentiating functionality and features that make their products stand out in the marketplace.

> Artisan delivers extensive services that can help IC designers to get to working-
production silicon quickly. We offer customers comprehensive support programs and 24x7 worldwide, web-based
support. Our technical training workshops assist customers in learning the latest methodologies in customer-

owned-tooling (COT) design and use of Artisan libraries.

> Artisan delivers integrated solutions by partnering with over 150 EDA,
IP and design services companies to ensure our libraries are compatible with leading design tools and methodolo-
gies. Qur alliances with many of the world’s leading semiconductor manufacturers provide customers with a wide

variety of fabrication choices across a wide selection of advanced process technologies.
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